
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

February 14, 2017 

 
CALENDAR 

Feb 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, Pinewood Elementary, 3420 E. Bristol Street 

Feb 14 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, Pinewood Elementary, 3420 E. Bristol Street 

Feb 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Pinewood Elementary, 3420 E. Bristol Street 

Feb 21 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Feb 28 5:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence Street 

Mar 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Mar 14 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Mar 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Mar 14 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

Central High School – Anthony Vu 
Memorial High School – Abegail Doncilovic 

 

D. SPECIAL RECOGNITION 
Pierre Moran 7th Grade Basketball Big 11 Tournament Winners 

 

E. CORPORATE/COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP OVERVIEW 
 

 Update on Corporate/Community Partnership 

 
 Recognition of Community Partners 

 

 Beardsley Project Update 
 

 Contingent Side Agreement 

 
 Elkhart Health, Fitness, Aquatics and Community Center Agreement 

 

F. BUILDING REPORT 
Building Energy Report – Jeff Komins 

Pinewood Principal - Mindy Shaw 



BOARD AGENDA February 14, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

G. MINUTES 
January 24, 2017 – Public Work Session  
January 24, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 

January 30, 2017 – Public Work Session 
 

H. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 
 Consideration of Claims 

 

 Appropriation Transfers - The Business Office reports on the transfer of 
appropriations of the 2016 tax funds. 
 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Extra Curricular Purchase - The Business Office seeks Board approval of an extra-
curricular purchase request. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Timber Harvest Update 
 

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 Redevelopment Commission Appointment 

 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Amendment to Management Services Agreement – The administration 

recommends approval of a proposed amendment to the agreement with 
TransPar to provide transportation management services. 

 
 Administrative Regulation GDBA-10 – Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule- The 

administration presents proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation GDBA-

10 – Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule for initial review. 
 

 Alternative Educational Services Agreement – The administration recommends 

Board approval for alternative educational services for an Elkhart Community 
Schools’ student. 
 

 Grant Approval – It is recommended the Board approve submission of grants as 
recommended by the administration. 
 

 Overnight Trip Request - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 
trip requests. 
 

  



BOARD AGENDA February 14, 2017 
 
 

3 
   

K. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

L. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 

 From Board 
 

M. ADJOURNMENT 

 



  2017-01-06 CONTINGENT SIDE AGREEMENT 

PAGE 1 

 

CONTINGENT SIDE AGREEMENT 
 

This Contingent Side Agreement is entered into between ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

(“Schools”) and the COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF ELKHART COUNTY, INC. (“Foundation”) on 

____________________, 2017. 

RECITALS 

A. The Foundation is one of two Members of Elkhart Health, Fitness and Aquatics, 

Inc., an Indiana nonprofit corporation (“Elkhart Aquatics”). 

B. BEACON HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. (“Beacon”) is the other Member of Elkhart 

Aquatics, and Beacon has contracted with Elkhart Aquatics and the Foundation to manage the 

operations at Elkhart Aquatics. 

C. The operations at Elkhart Aquatics will include four pools and certain related 

facilities in a new building (“Aquatics Facilities”) to be constructed on land to be owned by 

Elkhart Aquatics in Elkhart, Indiana. 

D. The Schools are negotiating an Agreement Concerning Aquatic Facilities with 

Elkhart Aquatics and Beacon, under which the Schools would have certain rights to use the pools 

and certain related facilities of Elkhart Aquatics, and under which the Schools would make 

certain payments with said payments being used to support the costs related to construction of 

the Aquatic Facilities, improvements to the Aquatic Facilities, and maintenance thereof. 

E. Before entering into the Agreement Concerning Aquatic Facilities described 

above, the Schools desire assurances from the Foundation that the Schools will be included in the 

process involving the operations of Elkhart Aquatics.  The Foundation is willing to provide these 

assurances, as provided in this Contingent Side Agreement. 

The Schools and the Foundation accordingly agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Representation on Elkhart Aquatics’ Board. Foundation will immediately cause 

the Articles of Incorporation and/or Bylaws of Elkhart Aquatics to be revised so as to provide for 

a Board of Directors consisting of seven (7) members. Prior to and during construction of the 

Aquatics Facilities, Foundation shall have five (5) directors designated by Foundation to serve on 

the Board of Directors of Elkhart Aquatics. Of the five (5) initial directors (subsequent to the 

amendment of the Articles of Incorporation and/or Bylaws) designated by Foundation, one (1) 

director shall be selected by Foundation from a list of nominees provided by Schools to 

Foundation. Foundation further agrees the size and allocation of the Board of Directors of 

Elkhart Aquatics shall not change except in the event of a unanimous vote by all Directors. In 

addition, with the exception of the management duties that have heretofore been assigned to 

Beacon by contract, the Foundation agrees the governance duties of the Directors shall not be 

delegated to any other committee or entity except in the event of a unanimous vote by all 



  2017-01-06 CONTINGENT SIDE AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

Directors. Upon occupancy of the Aquatics Facilities, Foundation shall designate four (4) 

directors, Beacon shall designate two (2) directors and Schools shall designate (1) director to 

serve on the Board of Directors of Elkhart Aquatics. 

2. Nature of Consultation.  The parties acknowledge and agree the purpose of 

Section 1 is to ensure the Schools will have the opportunity to provide its input and perspective, 

and Elkhart Aquatics will benefit from the input and perspective of the Schools. 

3. Agreement Concerning Aquatics Facility Unaffected.  Schools acknowledge 

nothing in this Contingent Side Agreement is intended to give either Elkhart Aquatics or Schools 

the right to terminate or amend the Agreement Concerning Aquatics Facility except as provided 

for in that Agreement. 

“SCHOOLS” 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

By:    

Printed Name:   

Title:    

 

“FOUNDATION” 
 

COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF ELKHART COUNTY, 

INC. 

 

By:    

Printed Name:   

Title:    

 

“BEACON”     “FOUNDATION” 
 

BEACON HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC. 

 

By:    

Printed Name:   

Title:    

 



 

AGREEMENT 

CONCERNING 

AQUATICS FACILITY 
ELKHART HEALTH, FITNESS AND WELLNESS CENTER 

BETWEEN 

ELKHART HEALTH, FITNESS AND AQUATICS, INC. 

AND ITS MANAGER 
BEACON HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. 

AND 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

___________, 2017 

 
 
 



 

 - i - 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

SECTION 2.1 Grant ........................................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 2.2 Term of Agreement .................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 2.3 Construction ............................................................................................... 4 

SECTION 2.4 Possession and Commencement Date ........................................................ 4 

SECTION 3.1 Payment Components ................................................................................. 4 

SECTION 3.2 Pre-Commencement Payments................................................................... 5 

SECTION 3.3 Mid-Term Capital Amount ......................................................................... 5 

SECTION 3.4 Operational Payments................................................................................. 5 

SECTION 3.5 Additional Payments .................................................................................. 7 

SECTION 3.6 Delinquent Payments .................................................................................. 7 

SECTION 3.7 Independent Obligations............................................................................. 8 

SECTION 4.1 Generally .................................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 4.2 ECS’s Exclusive Rights.............................................................................. 8 

SECTION 4.3 Nonexclusive Uses ................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 4.4 Preservation of Premises .......................................................................... 10 

SECTION 4.5 Rules ......................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 4.6 Parking...................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 4.7 Rights Reserved by BHS; Access to Premises ......................................... 11 

SECTION 5.1 Taxes ........................................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 5.2 Interruption and Changes ......................................................................... 12 

SECTION 6.1 Kinds and Amounts. ................................................................................. 13 

SECTION 6.2 BHS Insurance. ......................................................................................... 14 

SECTION 6.3 Deductibles; Evidence of Insurance. ........................................................ 15 



 

 - ii - 

SECTION 6.4 Blanket Policies. ....................................................................................... 15 

SECTION 6.5 Fire Protection. ......................................................................................... 15 

SECTION 6.6 Mutual Waiver of Subrogation Rights. .................................................... 15 

SECTION 6.7 Policies. .................................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 6.8 Construction by ECS. ............................................................................... 16 

SECTION 7.1 Indemnification. ....................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 7.2 Hazardous Materials. ................................................................................ 18 

SECTION 7.3 Compliance with Environmental Laws. ................................................... 18 

SECTION 7.4 Waiver of Certain Claims. ........................................................................ 19 

SECTION 8.1 Maintenance ............................................................................................. 20 

SECTION 8.2 BHS’s Obligations .................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 8.3 BHS’s Services ......................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 9.1 Compliance with Laws and Ordinances ................................................... 21 

SECTION 9.2 Compliance with Environmental Laws .................................................... 21 

SECTION 9.3 Survival .................................................................................................... 22 

SECTION 10.1 ECS’s Changes and Alterations ............................................................... 22 

SECTION 10.2 ECS’s Signs .............................................................................................. 22 

SECTION 10.3 Freedom from Liens ................................................................................. 23 

SECTION 11.1 Surrender of Premises .............................................................................. 23 

SECTION 11.2 Holding Over ............................................................................................ 24 

SECTION 12.1 Events of Default ...................................................................................... 24 

SECTION 12.2 BHS’s Remedies....................................................................................... 25 

SECTION 12.3 BHS Payment of Expenses ....................................................................... 26 

SECTION 12.4 No Waiver ................................................................................................ 26 

SECTION 12.5 Cumulative Remedies............................................................................... 27 



 

 - iii - 

SECTION 12.6 Waiver by ECS ......................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 12.7 Default Rate .............................................................................................. 27 

SECTION 12.8 Attorneys’ Fees......................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 12.9 BHS’s Default .......................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 13.1 Restoration................................................................................................ 28 

SECTION 13.2 Abatement of Payments............................................................................ 28 

SECTION 13.3 Termination of Agreement ....................................................................... 29 

SECTION 14.1 Condemnation of Premises ....................................................................... 29 

SECTION 14.2 Condemnation Award............................................................................... 30 

SECTION 15.1 Transfers Prohibited ................................................................................. 30 

SECTION 15.2 Permitted Transfer .................................................................................... 30 

SECTION 15.3 Recapture .................................................................................................. 30 

SECTION 15.4 Effect of Transfer ..................................................................................... 31 

SECTION 16.1 Certain Definitions ................................................................................... 31 

SECTION 16.2 Subordination by ECS .............................................................................. 31 

SECTION 17.1 Notices ...................................................................................................... 32 

SECTION 17.2 Quiet Enjoyment....................................................................................... 33 

SECTION 17.3 BHS’s Continuing Obligations ................................................................. 33 

SECTION 17.4 Estoppel Statement ................................................................................... 33 

SECTION 17.5 Severability ............................................................................................... 33 

SECTION 17.6 Governing Law ......................................................................................... 34 

SECTION 17.7 Successors and Assigns ............................................................................ 34 

SECTION 17.8 Captions .................................................................................................... 34 

SECTION 17.9 Relationship of Parties.............................................................................. 34 

SECTION 17.10 Entire Agreement ..................................................................................... 34 



 

 - iv - 

SECTION 17.11 Survival .................................................................................................... 34 

SECTION 17.12 Force Majeure........................................................................................... 34 

SECTION 17.13 Limited Liability....................................................................................... 35 

SECTION 17.14 Broker ....................................................................................................... 35 

SECTION 17.15 Time is of the Essence .............................................................................. 35 

SECTION 17.16 Waiver of Jury Trial ................................................................................. 35 

SECTION 17.17 Authority .................................................................................................. 35 

EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A Land, Improvements and Plan of Premises (Recital B) 

EXHIBIT B Rules (Section 4.5) 

SCHEDULES 

Schedule 4.1 Permitted Uses 

Schedule 4.2 School Programming Schedule 

 

 



 

AQUATICS FACILITY AGREEMENT 

THIS Agreement (this “Agreement”), is made as of ________, 2016, by and between 
Elkhart Health, Fitness and Aquatics, Inc., an Indiana nonprofit corporation (“EHFA”), and 
EHFA’s manager Beacon Health System, Inc., an Indiana nonprofit corporation (“BHS”), and 
Elkhart Community Schools, an Indiana community school corporation(“ECS”), with reference 
to the following facts: 

A. EHFA and BHS are each organized exclusively for educational or charitable 
purposes. ECS is a political subdivision of the State of Indiana and is exempt from federal 
income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 
BHS is part of a healthcare system and exempt from federal income taxes under 501(c)(3) of the 
Code. EHFA will apply for exemption from federal income taxes under 501(c)(3) of the Code. 

B. BHS is developing the building and other improvements located at premises that 
are in Elkhart, Indiana (the “Improvements”) on land (the “Land”) contributed to EHFA by 
BHS. BHS will operate the Improvements and use the Land for purposes in furtherance of BHS’s 
healthcare mission to promote health and wellness and EHFA’s charitable purposes. The Land 
and Improvements are identified on attached Exhibit A. The Improvements include the 
construction of a community wellness center and natatorium in Elkhart, Indiana, which facility is 
depicted on Exhibit A and which will include a fitness and wellness area, community gathering 
space, offices for local non-profit organizations and a regional natatorium for aquatic 
competition, recreation and physical therapy, including four pools – a competition and training 
pool with diving well (“Competition and Training Pool”), a teaching and fitness pool 
(“Teaching and Fitness Pool”), a therapy and rehab pool (“Therapy and Rehab Pool”) and a 
whirlpool (“Whirlpool”) (the four pools are collectively referred to as the “Pools”). 

C. For educational purposes, ECS provides aquatics, swimming and diving programs 
(including, but not limited to competitive, educational and instructional programs) and other 
organized swimming and diving programs to its students, and participates in competitive 
aquatics, swimming and diving events with other schools, including events through the Indiana 
High School Athletic Association (“IHSAA”). 

D. ECS and EHFA and BHS desire to partner together by entering into a relationship 
in which ECS will, in exchange for the Payments provided for and defined in this Agreement, 
have certain rights, on a non-exclusive basis, to use the portion of the Improvements shown on 
Exhibit A as the aquatics facility, including the Competition and Training Pool and the Teaching 
and Fitness Pool, lockers and dry training areas, and access to seating identified on Exhibit A 
under the color key as either “Elkhart Community Schools”, “Aquatics Center” or “General” (the 
“Premises”) for the Permitted Purposes defined in Section 4.1 on all of the terms and conditions 
set forth in this Agreement (including with respect to dates and times), so that ECS may offer 
such Permitted Uses for educational purposes including, but not limited to, aquatics, swimming 
and diving programs, and educational and instructional uses to its students, participation in 
competitive aquatics, swimming and diving events with other schools, including through the 
IHSAA or similar organizations, and including members of the public as spectators at such 
events. In its use of the Premises for Permitted Uses (defined in Section 4.1), ECS shall also have 
non-exclusive use of the Pools and surrounding area required for swim meets and other events at 



 

 - 2 - 

the Pools; areas provided for spectators; locker room facilities to be used by students, teachers, 
athletes, coaches and other required personnel; portions of common areas utilized for warm-up 
activities by the students and athletes; and portions of the common areas needed to provide 
access the Pools and spectator areas. 

E. Except as otherwise provided herein and when exclusively reserved to ECS, ECS 
acknowledges that the Premises including the Pools, may be used by or made available to others 
by BHS. Except as otherwise provided herein, ECS also acknowledges that the Improvements 
including the Pools, are a multi-use facility, including portions that will be accessible by the 
general public, as well as portions reserved for specific therapeutic, clinical and other programs 
and activities. 

F. In addition to the payments to be made by ECS, that will be used by BHS for the 
construction of and improvements to the Premises, and for operations and maintenance of the 
Premises under this Agreement, other funding for the Facilities is anticipated to be provided by 
other sources, including the Community Foundation of Elkhart County, Inc. (the “Foundation”), 
BHS, City of Elkhart and Regional Cities Grant Program, and the payments to be made by ECS 
toward the capital costs of the project constitute a substantial portion of the local government 
match that is required in order to obtain funding through the Regional Cities Grant Program. The 
funding by the Foundation, BHS and ECS will be used ratably for the Improvements. 

Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing premises and other good and valuable 
consideration given and received, BHS and ECS agree as follows: 

A R T I C L E  1 
SCHEDULE OF DEFINITIONS 

The definitions of the following capitalized terms used in this Agreement are located at 
the Section of this Agreement indicated below after the respective terms. 

Definition 
Abandons or Abandonment 

Agreement Section 
12.1(e) 

Additional Payments 3.5 
Affiliate 15.2 
Agreement Year 2.2 
Alterations 10.1 
Architect’s Opinion 13.1 
Building Requirements 10.1 
Commencement Date 2.2 
Common Area 4.3 
Competition and Training Pool Recital C 
Condemnation 14.1 
Default Rate 12.7 
Environmental Laws 7.2 
Event of Default 12.1 
Exclusive School Uses 4.2 
Hazardous Materials 7.2 
IHSAA Recital C 
Improvements Recital B 



 

 - 3 - 

Land Recital B 
BHS Introduction, and Section 17.3 
Agreement Introduction 
Legal Requirements 9.1 
Lender 16.1 
Mid-Term Capital Amount 3.3 
Mortgage 16.1 
Operational Costs 3.4 
Operational Payments 3.4 
Permitted Transfer 15.2 
Permitted Uses 4.1 
Pools Recital C 
Pre-Commencement Payments 3.2 
Premises Recital D 
Payments 3.1 
Rules 4.5 
School Programming Schedule 4.2 
Standard Operating Hours 8.3 
Teaching and Fitness Pool Recital C 
ECS Introduction 
ECS Parties 7.1(a) 
ECS’s Capital Amount Share 3.3 
ECS’s Operational Costs Share 3.4 
Term 2.2 
Therapy and Rehab Pool Recital C 
Whirlpool Recital C 

 

A R T I C L E  2 
GRANT; TERM OF AGREEMENT 

SE C T I ON 2.1 Grant 

In consideration of the payments to be paid by ECS and covenants to be performed by the 
parties, ECS will have the rights and obligations relating to the Premises, on the terms, 
conditions and provisions set forth below.  

SE C T I ON 2.2 Term of Agreement 

The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) will commence on ________, 201_ or such 
later date as provided in Section 2.4 (the “Commencement Date”), and will end on the date that 
is 20 years after the Commencement Date (the “Expiration Date”), provided that the 
Commencement Date and Expiration Date are each subject to Section 2.4 below. Each annual 
period ending on an anniversary of the Commencement Date is sometimes referred to as an 
“Agreement Year.” At least three years before the Expiration Date, ECS and BHS will begin 
discussions regarding the possible extension of the Term or entry into a new Agreement 
regarding the Premises on mutually agreeable terms, it being understood that such discussions 
and any resulting agreement shall address capital needs similar to the provisions for the 
Mid-Term Capital Amount in Section 3.3. 



 

 - 4 - 

SE C T I ON 2.3 Construction 

BHS will, with commercially reasonable diligence, construct the Improvements in 
accordance with plans and specifications that have been provided to ECS. 

The Improvements shall be in substantial compliance in all material respects with the 
plans previously provided to ECS. Once the approved plans and specifications for the 
Improvements have been permitted by the City of Elkhart, Indiana, then ECS shall thereafter be 
responsible for the cost of any changes or alterations to the final plans that are requested by ECS 
and agreed upon by BHS in its sole discretion. 

BHS will not materially change the Improvements in a manner that would materially and 
adversely affect ECS’s Permitted Uses of the Premises, without ECS’s prior written approval, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

SE C T I ON 2.4 Possession and Commencement Date 

ECS shall be entitled to possession of the Premises for purposes of Permitted Uses 
(defined in Section 4.1) on the later of the Commencement Date stated in Section 2.2 above or 
the date the Certificate of Occupancy (or its equivalent in the event the City of Elkhart, Indiana 
no longer issues Certificates of Occupancy) is issued. Such entitlement of possession shall be the 
actual Commencement Date of the Term (notwithstanding the date provided in Section 2.2), and 
BHS and ECS will promptly execute a memorandum to this Agreement confirming the 
Commencement Date and Expiration Date of the original Term, as soon as such dates are 
determined. BHS makes no promise or warranty relating to the condition or delivery of the 
Premises except as specifically stated in this Agreement to perform the Improvements, and 
except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement. In the event of delay in possession 
after the stated Commencement Date in Section 2.2 above, this Agreement shall not be rendered 
invalid, and BHS shall not be liable to ECS for damages in any respect whatsoever; provided that 
the Commencement Date shall be delayed until possession is delivered. 

A R T I C L E  3 
PAYMENTS 

SE C T I ON 3.1 Payment C omponents 

The amounts payable by the ECS to the BHS under this Agreement (the “Payments”) are 
in exchange for ECS's use of the Premises, and include (i) the Pre-Commencement Payments 
provided for in Section 3.2, (ii) the Mid-Term Capital Amount provided for in Section 3.3, and 
(iii) the Operational Payments provided for in Section 3.4, and the Additional Payments provided 
for in Section 3.5. All Payments shall be paid without previous demand and without any right of 
setoff, offset, counterclaim, abatement, suspension, deduction or defense of any kind whatsoever, 
at the address set forth for BHS in Section 17.1 below, or at such other place as BHS may from 
time to time designate in writing 



 

 - 5 - 

SE C T I ON 3.2 Pr e-C ommencement Payments 

ECS shall pay to BHS the sum of Six Million Dollars ($6,000,000) (the 
“Pre-Commencement Payments”) with ECS making a total payment of $4,000,000 in 2016, no 
later than December 31, 2016 and a total payment of $2,000,000 in 2017, no later than 
December 31, 2017. The Pre-Commencement Payments shall be payable in the installments and 
at the times set forth on Schedule 3.2. Such Pre-Commencement Payments made by ECS will be 
applied to construction of Improvements to the Premises. If EHFA and BHS determine, without 
first consulting with ECS, to abandon the construction of the Facilities, BHS shall repay to ECS 
that portion of the Pre-Commencement Payments already paid by ECS to BHS that is equal to 
the total of (i) Pre-Commencement Payments paid by ECS, plus (ii) contributions in funds or in 
kind made or committed to be made by BHS and the Foundation, minus (iii) disbursements made 
and payments committed and not cancellable for the construction of the Improvements, 
multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount in (i) above, and the denominator 
of which is the amount in (ii) above. 

SE C T I ON 3.3 Mid-Term Capital Amount 

On the tenth (10th) anniversary of the Commencement Date, ECS shall pay BHS an 
amount as determined below necessary to address capital improvements to the Premises that are 
determined in good faith by BHS to be (or have been) required as a result of depreciation, wear 
and tear on the aquatics facility (including costs of repairs or replacements of material capital 
items (such as electronic scoreboards, cameras, and timers that may be required during that 
preceding 10-year period) (the “Mid-Term Capital Amount”). To assist BHS in determining 
the Mid-Term Capital Amount, BHS will retain an independent third party aquatics consultant to 
assess the condition of the aquatics facility and provide a recommendation report to the BHS and 
ECS, which shall identify the necessary improvements and provide information useful in 
establishing a capital improvements budget by BHS. The capital improvements budget will 
provide for a breakdown of improvements between (i) those exclusively for the benefit of the 
ECS and Permitted Uses and (ii) those necessary for the overall upkeep of the aquatics facility at 
the Premises. The Mid-Term Capital Amount shall be the sum of (i) the cost of the 
improvements necessary for the overall upkeep of the aquatics facility at the Premises, multiplied 
by the ECS’s Capital Amount Share, as defined herein, plus (ii) the cost of the improvements 
exclusively for the benefit of the ECS and Permitted Uses.  

“ECS’s Capital Amount Share” initially means 28% and is based on BHS’s and ECS’s 
good faith estimate of the approximate usage by ECS based on the School Programming 
Schedule attached as Exhibit 4.2. ECS’s Capital Amount Share shall be adjusted in the amount 
and to the extent the School Programming Schedule changes, to reflect a fair allocation of the 
average annual percent of usage of the Premises by ECS compared to the overall usage of the 
Premises by all parties over the ten (10) year period commencing on the Commencement Date. 

SE C T I ON 3.4 Operational Payments 

ECS will pay ECS’s Operational Costs Share to BHS for each Agreement Year (the 
“Operational Payments”). The Operational Payments will be made in two (2) equal payments 
during each Agreement Year. The first semi-annual payment of Operational Payments shall be 



 

 - 6 - 

made on the first day of the month after the Commencement Date, and semi-annual payments of 
Operational Payments shall be made on each six month anniversary of the date the first semi-
annual payment of Operational Payments was due. The initial two semi-annual payments of 
Operational Payments shall each be $200,000 provided that for each Agreement Year after the 
first Agreement Year the amount of Operational Payments will be increased or decreased as 
provided below to the extent Operational Costs incurred by BHS relating to the Premises in that 
Agreement Year exceed or are less than the Operational Costs incurred by BHS or EHFA 
relating to the Premises during the preceding Agreement Year. 

“Operational Costs” means all expenses reasonably incurred annually by BHS or EHFA 
in the ownership and operation of the Premises, including but not limited to staffing and 
personnel, gas, water, sewer, electricity and other utility charges, premiums and other charges for 
insurance (except as provided in Article 6), reasonable reserves for replacements (excluding 
capital replacements), repairs and contingencies, and maintenance and repair of the Premises. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Operational Costs does not include expenses of a capital nature, 
including but not limited to capital improvements, capital repairs, or capital equipment which, 
under generally accepted accounting principles, are not regarded as operating or maintenance 
expenses.  

“ECS’s Operational Costs Share” initially means 28% and is based on BHS’s and 
ECS’s good faith estimate of the approximate usage by ECS based on the School Programming 
Schedule attached as Exhibit 4.2. ECS’s Operational Costs Share shall be adjusted each 
Agreement Year to reflect the actual percent of usage of the Premises by ECS (which 
presumptively shall be as set forth in the School Programming Schedule, as adjusted from time 
to time) compared to the preceding Agreement Year to reflect a fair allocation of Operational 
Costs, resulting from increase or decrease in ECS’s usage. 

The Operational Payments for each Agreement Year shall be increased or decreased, as 
the case may be, to the extent, if any, that (i) ECS’s Operational Costs Share for that Agreement 
Year exceeds or is less than the ECS’s Operational Costs Share for the preceding Agreement 
Year or (ii) Operational Costs for that Agreement Year exceed or are less than Operating 
Expenses for the preceding Agreement Year (the “Annual Operational Cost True-Up.”) BHS 
shall submit a monthly aquatics operational cost summary compared to the monthly expected 
budget to serve as a periodic monitoring tool for the Annual Operating Cost True-Up. 
Representatives of BHS and ECS shall meet on a monthly basis, as an operations committee or 
as part of the Facilities Review Committee; to review the operational cost summary and to 
discuss operations of the aquatics facility. BHS shall submit a statement to ECS computing the 
Annual Operational Cost True-Up within 120 days after the end of each Agreement Year 
(“BHS’s Statement”). In addition, ECS shall have the right at any time to review BHS’s records 
and estimates regarding Operational Costs. BHS and ECS intend for the Operational Costs to be 
reasonable and for each of them to have all available information regarding Operational Costs. 

ECS shall pay BHS any Annual Operational Cost True-up for an Agreement Year within 
90 days after receipt of BHS’s Statement certifying to the Annual Operational Cost True-Up, 
unless ECS gives BHS notice of disagreement with BHS’s Statement within that 30-day period, 
identifying with reasonable particularity the basis for ECS’s disagreement with BHS’s Statement 
(“Objection Notice”). If an Objection Notice is timely given, BHS and ECS shall endeavor in 



 

 - 7 - 

good faith to resolve their differences regarding the Annual Operational Cost True-Up, but if 
they cannot agree within 30 days, either BHS or ECS may submit the disagreement to binding 
arbitration by an independent accounting firm mutually agreeable to BHS and ECS. 

Each installment of Operational Payments is subject to annual appropriation and is not a 
debt of the ECS or any other person. The ECS intends to continue this Agreement for its entire 
term and to pay the Operational Payments relating to this Agreement. The person or entity in 
charge of preparing the ECS's budget will include in the budget request for each fiscal year the 
Operational Payments to become due in such fiscal year, and will use all reasonable and lawful 
means available to secure the appropriation of money for such fiscal year sufficient to pay all 
Operational Payments coming due in that year. The parties acknowledge that appropriation for 
Operational Payments requires legislative action. Notwithstanding the foregoing, failure to pay 
Operational Payments, whether as a result of inability to obtain legislative action or 
appropriation, or otherwise, shall constitute an Event of Default as provided in Section 12.1(a), 
and ECS shall not be entitled to use of the Pools or Premises during any period for which 
Operational Payments are unpaid. 

SE C T I ON 3.5 Additional Payments 

All other charges and expenses expressly reserved and charged in this Agreement, 
including those set forth at Section 3.6 "Delinquent Payments," Section 4.5 "Rules," Section 7.1 
"Indemnification," Section 9.2 "Compliance with Environmental Laws," Section 11.2 "Holding 
Over," Section 12.2 "BHS Remedies" and Section 12.7 "Default Rate" and which may be 
payable by ECS are collectively referred to as “Additional Payments,” and are payable at the 
times and in the manner provided in this Agreement. 

Each item of Additional Payments is subject to annual appropriation and is not a debt of 
the ECS or any other person. The ECS intends to continue this Agreement for its entire term and 
to pay the Additional Payments relating to this Agreement. The person or entity in charge of 
preparing the ECS's budget will include in the budget request for each fiscal year the Additional 
Payments to become due in such fiscal year, and will use all reasonable and lawful means 
available to secure the appropriation of money for such fiscal year sufficient to pay all 
Additional Payments coming due in that year. The parties acknowledge that appropriation for 
Additional Payments requires legislative action. Notwithstanding the foregoing, failure to pay 
Additional Payments when due, whether as a result of inability to obtain legislative action or 
appropriation, or otherwise, shall be an Event of Default as provided in Section 12.1(a), and ECS 
shall not be entitled to use the Pools or Premises during any period for which Additional 
Payments are delinquent. 

SE C T I ON 3.6 Delinquent Payments 

If ECS fails to make any Payments required under this Agreement within thirty (30) days 
after the same is due, then a late charge equal to the Default Rate percentage multiplied by such 
late amount shall automatically become due and payable immediately to BHS to compensate 
BHS for the cost and inconvenience of addressing such late payment. In addition, for any 
payment that is not received by BHS within thirty (30) days after ECS receives written notice 
from BHS that such payment was not paid by the due date, such payment will bear interest at the 



 

 - 8 - 

Default Rate set forth in Section 12.7, from the due date until the date such payment is received 
by BHS. This Section 3.6 does not limit BHS’s rights to exercise other remedies, including as 
provided in Section 12.2, with respect to Events of Default. 

SE C T I ON 3.7 Independent Obligations 

The obligations of ECS to make Payments required under this Agreement will be 
independent from all obligations, warranties and representations, express or implied, of BHS 
contained in this Agreement. 

A R T I C L E  4 
USE OF PREMISES 

SE C T I ON 4.1 Generally 

The Premises will be used by ECS during the Term only for the uses specified on 
Schedule 4.1 (the “Permitted Uses”) in a high quality manner and consistent with ECS’s current 
custom and practice in the community. Subject to Section 10.2, such Permitted Uses shall 
include, but are not limited to, the hanging of banners, placards or similar signs used to display 
such records, awards and championships as typically displayed at a home high school pool, but 
for avoidance of doubt shall not, without BHS’s prior written approval which may be withheld in 
its sole discretion, include any advertising, or names or logos of sponsors or of any commercial 
or nonprofit organization. The Premises shall be used exclusively by ECS for educational, school 
athletics and related purposes that are Permitted Uses, and not for any other uses or purposes by 
ECS. ECS will not at any time use or occupy, nor allow any employee, student, or guest of any 
employee or student to use or occupy the Premises in any manner that is contrary to Legal 
Requirements (as defined in Section 9.1). ECS will not permit any waste or nuisance to occur at 
the Premises, or which may make void or voidable any insurance with respect to the Premises, or 
which may violate any provision of this Agreement. 

To facilitate communication, transparency and cooperation, ESC and BHS shall establish 
a committee (the “Facilities Review Committee”), consisting of equal numbers of executives 
designated by each of ECS and BHS from time to time. The Facilities Review Committee shall 
consult with the athletic and aquatics directors from both ECS and BHS and provide information 
and nonbinding recommendations to BHS with respect to matters relating to the use and 
operation of the Premises as provided in this Agreement, including evaluating educational 
enrichment and programming opportunities and addressing scheduling issues regarding both 
short-term and long-term needs for ECS to access the Pools. 

BHS and ECS will explore mutual opportunities for educational enrichment, including 
with respect to health and wellness education, involving a combination of facilities at the 
Premises and educators provided by ECS. 

SE C T I ON 4.2 ECS’s Exclusive Rights 

During the Term, so long as ECS is not in default under this Agreement, ECS shall have 
access and use of the Premises, and use of the Pools and any classrooms on the Premises, on the 
dates and for the times set forth in Schedule 4.2 (the “School Programming Schedule”). BHS 



 

 - 9 - 

and ECS may from time to time mutually modify the School Programming Schedule by separate 
written agreement, and may consider recommendations by the Facilities Review Committee. 
BHS grants ECS the right to be the only public or private K-12, high school, junior high school 
or elementary level educational organization to use the Premises for K-12, high school, junior 
high school, or elementary school swimming or diving practices and as hosts of K-12, high 
school, junior high school, or elementary school swimming or diving competitions (collectively, 
the “Exclusive School Uses”) during the Term. All fees including, but not limited to, concession 
sales, admission fees and vendor fees collected by ECS relating to events associated with the 
Exclusive School Uses shall be the sole property of the ECS. All fees including, but not limited 
to, concession sales, admission fees and vendor fees collected by BHS relating to events not 
associated with the Exclusive School Uses shall be the sole property of the BHS. The parties 
acknowledge that certain organizations and clubs, such as Elkhart United, may be affiliated or 
associated with ECS from time to time as designated by ECS, but shall not be entitled to the 
Exclusive School Uses, although BHS will endeavor in good faith to accommodate usage by 
such organizations and clubs to the extent consistent with optimal operational, functional and 
overall strategic considerations relating to the Premises. ECS initially designates Elkhart United 
as such organization or club, and initially for the three (3) Lease Year intends to accommodate at 
least one competitive meet by Elkhart United, to be included as a cost of ECS in computing 
ECS’s Operational Costs Share and ECS’s Capital Amount Share. To the extent the designated 
organization or club uses any portion of the Premises as part of its normal practice schedule, 
such designated organization or club shall not be charged for such usage, but such usage shall be 
included in the calculation of ECS’s Operational Costs Share and Capital Amount Share. If such 
organization or club designated by ECS elects to use the Premises for competition, BHS may 
elect, after the first three (3) years, to charge such designated organization or club similar fees for 
such usage which shall not be on a less favorable basis than any such fee charged to 
organizations or clubs not affiliated with ECS, provided further that if such designated 
organization or club uses the Premises for competition, all concession sales, admission fees and 
vendor fees collected by such designated organization or club shall be the sole property of such 
designated organization or club. So long as ECS is not in default under this Agreement, the 
lockers and the coaches and club offices identified on Exhibit A as “Exclusive School Use” shall 
be reserved for the exclusive use of students and coaches of ECS who are designated by ECS 
from time to time as entitled to the use of such lockers and coaches and club offices, subject to 
the rights of ECS and BHS to inspect, clean and maintain such lockers and offices and to enforce 
applicable rules and regulations which either or both of ECS or BHS adopt regarding such 
lockers and offices. So long as ECS is not in default under this Agreement, BHS shall not enter 
into a lease, sublease or other agreement for use of space in the Premises by another party to 
provide the activities described in the Exclusive School Uses. For clarification purposes, ECS 
shall have priority access to the Premises for Permitted Uses under the School Scheduling 
Schedule and ECS's access to the Premises shall not be subject to rescheduling by BHS, except 
in case of emergency, or with the written consent of ECS which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned or delayed. For additional clarification purposes, it is understood and 
agreed by ECS that the Premises are a multi-use facility that will often concurrently be used by 
others, including by the general public and by BHS for therapeutic clinical and other programs 
and activities. If BHS breaches its covenant under this Section 4.2, then ECS shall be entitled to 
seek injunctive relief to enjoin or restrain such occupant or BHS from engaging in such 
Exclusive School Uses. 



 

 - 10 - 

SE C T I ON 4.3 Nonexclusive Uses 

The use and occupation by ECS of the Premises shall include a non-exclusive right to use 
the common areas of the Improvements and Land, including parking areas, solely for purposes of 
necessary access to the Premises by ECS and its students, employees and authorized spectators, 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to reasonable rules and regulations as 
may be prescribed from time to time by the BHS in accordance with Section 4.5 below. The term 
“common area” shall mean all unreserved and unassigned facilities (including parking facilities 
as provided in Section 4.6) furnished in the Improvements and on the Land for the general use, in 
common, of multiple occupants of the Improvements (including ECS) and their respective 
invitees, employees, and patients and members of the public. BHS shall have the right to make 
such changes, modifications, and revisions to the site plan and common areas of the 
Improvements as the BHS may deem reasonably appropriate, provided such changes, 
modifications, and revisions do not materially impair access to and visibility of the Premises or 
otherwise unreasonably interfere with ECS’s Permitted Uses. 

SE C T I ON 4.4 Preservation of Premises 

(a) ECS will not use, suffer, or permit the Premises to be used by ECS, any third 
party, or the public in such manner as to impair EHFA’s fee interest in the Land or ownership of 
the Improvements, or BHS’s management of the Facility, or in such manner as to make possible 
a claim of adverse usage or adverse possession by the public or third persons, or of implied 
dedication of the Premises. Nothing contained in this Agreement and no action or inaction by 
EHFA or BHS will be deemed or construed to mean that BHS has granted to ECS any right, 
power or permission to do any act or make any agreement that may create or give rise to any 
such right, title, interest, lien, charge or other encumbrance upon the estate of BHS in the 
Premises.  

(b) ECS may conduct safety inspections of the Premises in a similar manner as ECS 
conducts on its other properties. ECS may notify the BHS of any safety hazards or concerns 
identified through such inspections. BHS shall confer with ECS regarding such safety hazards or 
concerns identified by ECS within ten (10) days of receipt of ECS's notice, with a view to 
developing a mutually agreeable plan to correct or eliminate mutually agreed upon safety 
hazards or concerns as soon as is reasonably practicable.  

SE C T I ON 4.5 Rules 

ECS shall comply, and shall be responsible for causing its students, employees, and 
spectators and the students, employees and spectators of other schools participating in events at 
the Premises as part of the Permitted Uses and while on or about the Improvements and Land, to 
comply, with the Rules set forth in attached Exhibit B (the “Rules”). BHS shall have the right, 
by written notice to ECS, to amend such Rules reasonably and supplement the same with other 
reasonable Rules relating to the Improvements, or the promotion of safety, care, efficiency, 
cleanliness or good order therein, provided that such Rules will not materially and adversely 
conflict with the express terms of this Agreement. BHS shall enforce such Rules in a uniform 
and non-discriminatory manner as against ECS and others. To the extent any Rules conflict with 
the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall control. 



 

 - 11 - 

SE C T I ON 4.6 Parking 

ECS acknowledges that the City of Elkhart, Indiana will be constructing a parking area 
on the Land. This Agreement will not be void or voidable, nor will EHFA and BHS be liable to 
ECS for any loss or damage therefrom or any reduction in Payments of any kind due to any delay 
in the completion of such parking area. As between EHFA and BHS on the one hand, and ECS 
on the other hand, the parking area will be available to ECS on a nonexclusive, unassigned and 
unreserved basis for use by its students, employees, invitees and authorized spectators, and the 
students, employees, invitees and authorized spectators of other schools participating in events at 
the Premises as part of the Permitted Uses. Any such use of parking areas shall be (i) subject to 
all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, (ii) at ECS’s sole risk and expense, (iii) in 
compliance with all applicable Legal Requirements, (iv) in compliance with any and all rules and 
regulations that BHS may in its reasonable discretion promulgate from time to time during the 
Term, and (v) in compliance with any and all ordinances, rules and regulations that City of 
Elkhart, Indiana may promulgate from time to time during the Term. BHS shall have no liability 
whatsoever, pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, to ECS in connection with, and ECS shall 
indemnify and hold BHS harmless from, any claims for any damage or theft of any personal 
property (including vehicles) or any injury or death to persons or property that may occur or arise 
in connection with use of any parking areas by ECS or ECS’s students, employees, invitees and 
spectators, and the students, employees, invitees and authorized spectators of other schools 
participating in events at the Premises as part of the Permitted Uses.  

SE C T I ON 4.7 Rights Reserved by BHS; Access to Premises 

Except to the extent expressly limited in this Agreement, BHS reserves full rights to 
control the Improvements (which rights may be exercised without subjecting BHS to claims for 
constructive eviction, abatement of Payments, damages or other claims of any kind), including 
more particularly, but without limitation, the following rights: 

(a) To: (i) change the name or street address of the Improvements or designation of 
the Premises, (ii) install and maintain signs on and about the Improvements, and grant 
any other person the right to do so, (iii) retain at all times, and use in appropriate 
instances, keys to all doors within and into the Premises, and (iv) in case of fire, invasion, 
insurrection, riot, civil disorder, public excitement or other dangerous condition, or threat 
thereof: (a) limit or prevent access to the Improvements, (b) activate elevator emergency 
controls, and (c) otherwise take such action or preventative measures deemed necessary 
by BHS for the safety of individuals or of the Improvements or the protection of the 
Improvements and other property located on the Land (but this provision shall impose no 
duty on BHS to take such actions, and no liability for actions taken in good faith). 

(b) Subject to the following provisions, to enter the Premises in order to: (i) inspect, 
(ii) show the Premises to prospective Lenders, as defined in Section 16.1 in, insurers, 
purchasers, governmental authorities, and their representatives, (iii) decorate, remodel or 
alter the Premises if ECS abandons the Premises at any time or vacates the same during 
the last 120 days of the Term (without thereby terminating this Agreement), and (iv)
 perform any work or take any other actions under Section 4.7(c) below, or exercise other 
rights of BHS under this Agreement or applicable Legal Requirements. In connection 



 

 - 12 - 

with any such access to the Premises, except in emergencies or for cleaning or other 
routine services to be provided to ECS under this Agreement, BHS shall: (a) provide 
reasonable advance written or oral notice to ECS’s on-site manager or other appropriate 
person, and (b) take reasonable steps to minimize any disruption to ECS’s business. 

(c) Subject to the last sentence of this Section 4.7(c), to: (i) paint and decorate, (ii)
 perform repairs or maintenance, and (iii) make replacements, restorations, renovations, 
alterations, additions and improvements, structural or otherwise, in and to the 
Improvements or any part thereof, including any adjacent building, structure, facility, 
land, street or alley, or change the uses thereof (other than ECS’s permitted use under this 
Agreement), including changes, reductions or additions of corridors, entrances, doors, 
lobbies, parking facilities and other areas, structural support columns and shear walls, 
elevators, stairs, escalators, mezzanines, solar tint windows or film, kiosks, planters, 
sculptures, displays, and other amenities and features therein, and changes relating to the 
connection with or entrance into or use of the Improvements or any other adjoining or 
adjacent building or buildings, now existing or hereafter constructed. In connection with 
such matters, BHS may erect scaffolding, barricades and other structures, open ceilings, 
close entry ways, restrooms, elevators, stairways, corridors, parking and other areas and 
facilities, and take such other actions as BHS deems appropriate. However, BHS shall: 
(A) maintain reasonable access and visibility to the Premises, and (B) in connection with 
entering the Premises, comply with the last sentence of Section 4.7(b) above. 

(d) Subject to the School Programming Schedule, BHS may lease or license the Pools 
to third parties, whether public or private, (other than public or private K-12, high school, 
junior high school or elementary schools other than ECS, as provided in Section 4.2) for 
meets and training and other purposes. 

(e) BHS retains all rights to receive all concessions, rents and vending machine 
revenue from use of the Premises, except for concession sales, admission fees and vendor 
fees relating to Exclusive School Uses as provided in Section 4.2. 

A R T I C L E  5 
TAXES AND UTILITIES 

SE C T I ON 5.1 Taxes 

Should the Premises, Land or Improvements become subject to real estate taxes, such real 
estate taxes and assessments and any penalties shall be included in determining Operational 
Payments, and ECS shall be responsible for ECS’s Operational Costs Share of such taxes and 
assessments. 

SE C T I ON 5.2 Interruption and Changes 

If (a) any of the utilities or services are interrupted for any reason that is within the 
reasonable control of BHS to prevent and is not an emergency situation, and is not caused by 
ECS or its employees or contractors or invitees, or licensees (including students and spectators), 
or (b) any other utilities are interrupted due to the actions or omissions of BHS or BHS’s agents, 
contractors or employees, or (c) BHS unreasonably interferes with ECS’s access to the Premises, 



 

 - 13 - 

so that (in any such case) ECS is not able and actually ceases to conduct Permitted Uses, 
Operational Payments shall abate during the period of such interruption. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this 5.2 or otherwise, BHS shall have no liability for interruptions, 
variations, shortages, failures, changes in quality, quantity, character or availability of any 
utilities or services to the Premises or Improvements or Land for any reason in the ordinary 
course of business. 

A R T I C L E  6 
INSURANCE 

SE C T I ON 6.1 Kinds and Amounts. 

ECS, at its sole cost and expense, shall obtain and continuously maintain in full force and 
effect during the Agreement Term: 

(a) Worker’s Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance. Worker’s 
Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance, in statutory amounts, covering all ECS 
employees who provide a service under this Agreement, and Employer’s Liability coverage with 
limits of not less than $500,000 each accident/illness/disease. The parties understand and 
acknowledge that ECS is currently self-insured for Worker’s Compensation, but maintains a 
stop-loss policy of insurance. Such self-insured policy provided to BHS is currently in 
compliance with the requirements of this Section. The policy shall contain a Waiver of 
Subrogation in favor of BHS and EHFA. 

(b) Commercial Liability Insurance (Primary and Umbrella). Commercial 
Liability Insurance and also Student Accident Coverage with limits of not less than $5,000,000 
per occurrence or $10,000,000 annual aggregate limit. ECS hereby waives, releases, and 
discharges BHS and EHFA, its agents and employees from and against all claims whatsoever 
arising out of loss, claim, expense or damage to or destruction or to ECS’s business 
notwithstanding that such loss, claim, expense or damage may have been caused by BHS, its 
agents or employees. ECS agrees to look solely to its insurance coverage in the event of such 
loss. BHS and EHFA shall be included as additional insureds on a primary non-contributory 
basis arising out of ECS’s use and occupancy of the Premises. 

(c) Automobile Liability Insurance. In the event any vehicles are utilized by ECS 
for any purposes in connection with this Agreement or in connection with ECS’s operations at 
the Premises, ECS shall provide Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of not less than 
$2,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit, for bodily and property damage, covering all 
owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. BHS and EHFA are to be named as additional insureds on 
a primary non-contributory basis. In the event any vehicles are utilized for any purposes in 
connection with this Agreement, or in connection with its operations at the Premises, and such 
Automobile Liability insurance has not been provided pursuant to this Article 6.1(c), ECS agrees 
it will assume full responsibility for and shall promptly pay any and all liabilities, obligations, 
claims, damages, penalties, costs and expenses, including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and 
expenses, incurred or asserted by any person or entity for any reason with respect thereto. 



 

 - 14 - 

(d) Contents Insurance/Property Insurance. Insurance against fire, sprinkler 
leakage, vandalism, and the extended coverage perils for the full replacement cost of: 1) all 
contents of ECS located at or in the Premises; 2) all personal property of ECS or the personal 
property of others kept, stored or maintained on the Premises; and 3) all office furniture, trade 
fixtures, office equipment, merchandise and all other items of ECS’s property on the Premises. 
Said policy shall insure against loss or damage by fire, windstorm or other casualties or causes of 
whatever kind or nature, and shall contain a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of BHS and EHFA. 
ECS and any of its contractors hired to perform work on the Premises assume all liability and 
risk, and agree to waive all claims against BHS for damage to or loss of equipment, machinery, 
tools, supplies and other tangible personal property owned or supplied by ECS or any of its 
contractors. Any insurance which ECS or any of its contractors hired to perform work on the 
Premises desires to cover loss of ECS’s or its contractor’s equipment, machinery, tools, supplies 
or other tangible personal property shall be at its discretion and at its sole cost and expense. Any 
such insurance carried by ECS or its contractor shall contain a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of 
BHS and EHFA. 

(e) The limits on all insurance carried under this Agreement shall be adjusted at the 
time of any extension to reflect any changes to statutory requirements or industry standards, but 
in no event shall the limits be adjusted to less than the required limits set forth in this Article 6. 

Any insurance available to BHS shall be excess over any and all insurance provided by 
ECS pursuant to this Article 6. 

SE C T I ON 6.2 BHS Insurance. 

(a) Property Insurance. BHS shall obtain and continuously maintain in full force 
and effect during the Agreement Term thereof property insurance on an “all risk” basis 
(including sprinkler leakage, if applicable) for the full replacement cost of the Building 
excluding excavation and foundation costs. 

(b) Worker’s Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance. Worker’s 
Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance, in statutory amounts, covering all employees 
of the BHS who provide a service under this Agreement. Employer’s liability coverage with 
limits of not less than $500,000 each accident or illness shall be included. The policy shall 
contain a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the ECS and EHFA. 

(c) Commercial Liability Insurance (Primary and Umbrella). Commercial 
Liability Insurance with limits of not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence and $10,000,000 
annual aggregate limit. BHS hereby waives, releases, and discharges ECS and EHFA, its agents 
and employees from and against all claims whatsoever arising out of loss, claim, expense or 
damage to or destruction of any such personal property or to BHS’s business notwithstanding 
that such loss, claim, expense or damage may have been caused by ECS, its agents or employees. 
BHS agrees to look solely to its insurance coverage in the event of such loss arising out of BHS's 
use of the facility. ECS and EHFA shall be included as additional insureds on a primary, non-
contributory basis arising out of BHS’s maintenance of the Premises, including common areas. 



 

 - 15 - 

(d) All Risk Builders Risk Insurance. During the construction of the Improvements 
or any other improvements on the Premises by BHS, BHS shall provide All Risk Blanket 
Builder’s Risk Insurance to cover the materials, supplies, equipment, machinery and fixtures that 
are or will be part of the Premises. Coverage extensions shall include the following: right to 
partial occupancy, materials stored off-site and in-transit, boiler and machinery, collapse, water 
damage, debris removal, faulty workmanship or materials, testing, mechanical-electrical 
breakdown and failure, business interruption, extra expense, loss of revenue, loss of rents and 
loss of use of property, as applicable. 

SE C T I ON 6.3 Deductibles; Evidence of Insurance. 

Each policy required under this Article shall have a deductible of no more than what is 
considered commercially reasonable for an insured party comparable to the insured party, taking 
into consideration the net worth and financial strength of insured party, and in the event of a loss, 
the insured party shall be responsible for the amount of any such deductible. Each policy shall 
have attached to it (i) an endorsement that such policy shall not be cancelled without at least 
thirty (30) days (ten (10) days for nonpayment of premium) prior written notice to the other party 
and any named mortgagee, and (ii) if available on commercially reasonable terms, an 
endorsement to the effect that the insurance as to the interests of BHS and ECS shall not be 
invalidated by any act or neglect of any person. Certificates of insurance reasonably acceptable 
to BHS, ECS and EHFA and evidence of payment shall be delivered to BHS, ECS and EHFA 
upon commencement of the term and prior to expiration of any policy. 

SE C T I ON 6.4 Blanket Policies.  

ECS and BHS may satisfy the liability insurance requirements under this Article under a 
blanket insurance policy or policies which may cover other properties occupied by ECS or BHS, 
as applicable, provided, however, that any such policy of blanket insurance shall (i) specify the 
limits exclusively allocated to the Premises; and (ii) as respects the Premises, contain all the 
various provisions required of such an insurance policy by the foregoing provisions of this 
Article. 

SE C T I ON 6.5 Fire Protection.  

ECS and BHS shall comply with all applicable building and fire codes, laws and 
ordinances, including without limitation all applicable rules and regulations of the Board of Fire 
Underwriters, the fire department or marshal wherein the Premises are situated, and the property 
insurance carrier. 

SE C T I ON 6.6 Mutual Waiver of Subrogation Rights.  

Whenever (a) any loss, cost, damage or expense resulting from fire, explosion or any 
other casualty or occurrence of any nature is incurred by any of the parties to this Agreement, or 
anyone claiming by, through, or under it in connection with the Premises, and (b) such party is 
then covered in whole or in part by insurance with respect to such loss, cost, damage or expense 
or is required under this Agreement to be so insured, then the party so insured (or so required to 
be insured) hereby releases the other party from any liability said other party may have on 
account of such loss, cost, damage or expense to the extent of any amount recovered by reason of 



 

 - 16 - 

such insurance (or which could have been recovered had such insurance been carried as so 
required) and waives any right of subrogation which might otherwise exist in, or accrue to, any 
person on account thereof, provided that such release of liability and waiver of the right of 
subrogation shall not be operative in any case where the effect thereof is to invalidate such 
insurance coverage. 

SE C T I ON 6.7 Policies.  

The minimum limits of insurance specified in this Section shall in no way limit or 
diminish ECS’s or BHS's liability under this Agreement. The insured party shall furnish to other 
party including EHFA, not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date such insurance is first 
required to be carried by the insured party, and thereafter at least fifteen (15) days prior to the 
expiration of each such policy, true and correct photocopies of all insurance policies required 
under this Section to the extent certificates are not reasonably acceptable to the other party, 
together with any amendments and endorsements to such policies, certificates of insurance, and 
such other evidence of coverages as the other party may reasonably request, and evidence of 
payment of all premiums and other expenses owed in connection therewith. Upon ECS’s default 
in obtaining or delivering the policy for any such insurance or ECS’s failure to pay the charges 
therefore, BHS may, at its option, on or after the tenth (10th) day after written notice thereof is 
given to ECS, procure or pay the charges for any such policy or policies and the total cost and 
expense shall be immediately paid by ECS to BHS as Additional Payments upon receipt of a bill 
from BHS. Upon BHS’s default in obtaining or delivering the policy for any such insurance or 
BHS’s failure to pay the charges therefore, ECS may, at its option, on or after the tenth (10th) 
day after written notice thereof is given to BHS, procure or pay the charges for any such policy 
or policies and the total cost and expense shall be immediately paid by BHS to ECS upon receipt 
of a bill from ECS. 

SE C T I ON 6.8 Construction by ECS. 

During any construction permitted under this Agreement to be done by ECS (other than 
with respect to the construction of the Improvements by BHS, but including improvements, 
betterments or repairs), ECS or its contractor shall procure and maintain, or cause to be 
maintained, the kinds and amounts of insurance, and any and all subcontractors employed by 
ECS or its Contractor for any purpose shall maintain equivalent coverages as approved by BHS 
prior to any such construction. Such insurance procured by ECS or its contractors or 
subcontractors shall include: (i) BHS and EHFA as additional insured on a primary/non-
contributing basis on commercial general liability (CGL) and automobile liability, and (ii) 
additional insured status under CGL shall include products and completed operations. A copy of 
the endorsement must be attached to the certificate provided to BHS and EHFA. 

A R T I C L E  7 
INDEMNITY AND WAIVER 

SE C T I ON 7.1 Indemnification. 

(a) ECS will protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless BHS, and BHS’s affiliates, 
beneficiaries, mortgagees, and their respective agents, employees, officers and directors, from 



 

 - 17 - 

any and all claims, demands, obligations, losses, penalties, fines, fees, charges, assessments, 
liabilities, causes of actions, damages, judgments, orders, decrees, actions, administrative or 
other proceedings, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ and expert witness fees, 
and court costs) incurred or asserted by reason of (i) any accident, injury to, or death of, persons 
or loss of, or damage to, property occurring on or about the Premises, Land, or Improvements or 
any part thereof resulting from any act or omission of any ECS Party (defined below) or anyone 
claiming by, through, or under as ECS Party, unless the same is caused by the gross negligence 
or intentional misconduct of BHS or anyone claiming by, through, or under BHS, or an 
employee, agent or visitor or BHS; (ii) any failure on the part of ECS to perform or comply with 
any of the terms of this Agreement or with any Legal Requirements; (iii) the performance of any 
labor or services or the furnishing of any materials or other property in respect of the Premises or 
any part thereof performed by or on behalf of ECS during the Term unless the same is performed 
by BHS or BHS’s agent or employee; (iv) except as provided in this Agreement, any failure to 
vacate and surrender the Premises upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement or 
ECS’s right to possession of the Premises in the condition required under Section 11.1; (v)
 damage, loss or injury to persons, property or business directly or indirectly arising out of use of 
the Premises, Land or the Improvements by ECS and any of its agents, employees, invitees, 
transferees and contractors (“ECS Parties” and each a “ECS Party”), or out of any other act or 
omission of any ECS Parties, and (vi) any other damage, loss or injury to persons, property or 
business occurring in, about or from the Premises, Land or Improvements resulting from any act 
or omission of any ECS Party or anyone claiming by, through, or under ECS Party except to the 
extent that such other damage, loss or injury to persons, property or business is caused by the 
gross negligence or intentional misconduct of BHS or BHS’s agents, contractors, or employees, 
or (vii) claims, losses, damages, remediation and response costs, clean-up costs and expenses 
arising out of or in any way relating to Hazardous Materials, as defined in Section 7.2, released, 
deposited, discharged, stored, moved onto, created upon, or removed from the Premises by ECS, 
its successors and assigns or their respective agents, employees, licensees and invitees, including, 
without limitation, (x) claims of third parties, including governmental entities, for damages, 
penalties, remediation and response costs, clean-up costs, injunctive or other relief; and (y) costs 
and expenses relating to remediation, removal and restoration, including fees and costs of 
environmental engineers, attorneys and experts, audit costs and costs of reporting the existence 
of Hazardous Materials to any governmental agency. ECS’s defense and indemnification 
obligations set forth in this Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

(b) BHS will protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless ECS, its agents, employees, 
officers and directors, from any and all claims, demands, obligations, losses, penalties, fines, 
fees, charges, assessments, liabilities, causes of actions, damages, judgments, orders, decrees, 
actions, administrative or other proceedings, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ 
and expert witness fees, and court costs) incurred or asserted by reason of (i) any accident, injury 
to, or death of, persons or loss of, or damage to, property occurring on or about the Premises, 
Land, or Improvements or any part thereof resulting from any act or omission of any BHS Party 
(defined below) or anyone claiming by, through, or under as BHS Party, unless the same is 
caused by the gross negligence or intentional misconduct of ECS or anyone claiming by, 
through, or under ECS, or an employee, agent or visitor or ECS; (ii) any failure on the part of 
BHS to perform or comply with any of the terms of this Agreement or with any Legal 
Requirements; (iii) the performance of any labor or services or the furnishing of any materials or 



 

 - 18 - 

other property in respect of the Premises or any part thereof performed by or on behalf of BHS 
during the Term unless the same is performed by ECS or ECS's agent, employee or anyone 
claiming by, through, or under ECS; (iv) damage, loss or injury to persons, property or business 
directly or indirectly arising out of use of the Premises, Land or the Improvements by BHS and 
any of its agents, employees, invitees, transferees and contractors (“BHS Parties” and each a 
“BHS Party”), or out of any other act or omission of any BHS Parties, and (v) any other 
damage, loss or injury to persons, property or business occurring in, about or from the Premises, 
Land or Improvements resulting from any act or omission of any BHS Party or anyone claiming 
by, through, or under BHS Party except to the extent that such other damage, loss or injury to 
persons, property or business is caused by the gross negligence or intentional misconduct of ECS 
or ECS’s agents, contractors, or employees or (vi) claims, losses, damages, remediation and 
response costs, clean-up costs and expenses, arising out of or in any way relating to Hazardous 
Materials, released, deposited, discharged, stored, moved onto, created upon, or removed from 
the Premises by BHS, its successors and assigns or their respective agents, employees, licensees 
and invitees, including, without limitation, (a) claims of third parties, including governmental 
entities, for damages, penalties, remediation and response costs, clean-up costs, injunctive or 
other relief; and (b) costs and expenses relating to remediation, removal and restoration, 
including fees and costs of environmental engineers, attorneys and experts, audit costs and costs 
of reporting the existence of Hazardous Materials to any governmental agency. BHS’s 
indemnification obligations set forth in this Agreement shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 7.2 Hazardous Materials.  

For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Hazardous Materials” shall mean and 
include any and all hazardous, special, medical, toxic or dangerous waste substance or material 
defined in, or regulated by, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act of 1980 (42 USC Section 9601, et. seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation 
Act (49 USC Section 1802, et. seq.) and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC 
Section 6901, et. seq.) or any other federal, state or local statute, law, ordinance, code, rule, 
regulation, guideline, order or decree regulating, relating to or imposing liability or standards of 
conduct concerning the environment or any hazardous, toxic or dangerous waste, substance or 
material, as now or at any time hereafter in effect (collectively, “Environmental Laws”). 

SE C T I ON 7.3 Compliance with Environmental Laws.  

To BHS’s knowledge without independent investigation the Land and the surrounding 
property are free of any Hazardous Materials as of the date of this Agreement. BHS and ECS 
each hereby agrees, at its sole expense, to comply with all Environmental Laws affecting the 
Premises and the Improvements, and ECS shall provide BHS with any notices received by any 
governmental authority with respect to the same. ECS shall not install any underground or 
surface storage tanks on the Land. BHS and ECS each shall not discharge, release, store, create, 
use, move onto or remove from the Premises any Hazardous Materials, except that BHS and 
ECS may each use small quantities of Hazardous Materials as are necessary in the ordinary 
course of its business provided the same are stored, used and managed by each party in strict 
accordance with all Environmental Laws and in a manner that will not expose BHS or ECS to 
potential environmental liability or adversely affect the value or marketability of the 



 

 - 19 - 

Improvements. ECS shall comply at its expense with any bio or medical waste containment or 
disposal requirements. ECS shall install as needed in the Premises and BHS shall cause to be 
installed as needed in the Improvements all necessary odor and dust controls and any other 
pollution control devices which are necessary to ensure compliance with all applicable 
Environmental Laws. If BHS, in its reasonable judgment, believes that ECS has caused the 
Premises or the surrounding environment to become contaminated with Hazardous Materials or 
that ECS has violated any Environmental Laws, BHS may, in addition to its other rights under 
this Agreement, enter upon the Premises and obtain samples from the Premises, including the 
soil and groundwater under the Premises, to determine whether and to what extent the Premises 
or the surrounding environment have become contaminated. Such testing shall be performed at 
BHS’s expense unless such tests indicate that ECS has contaminated the Premises or the 
environment with Hazardous Materials or that ECS has violated any Environmental Laws, in 
which case ECS shall pay the cost of such testing on demand. In the event that it is found that 
either BHS or ECS contaminated the Premises, the Improvements or the environment with 
Hazardous Materials, the applicable party shall take all necessary steps to fully remove such 
Hazardous Material from the Premises, the Improvements, any adjacent property and the 
environment including, but not limited to, the cost of any required or necessary repair, cleanup or 
detoxification and preparation of any closure or other remediation plans in connection therewith, 
all to the reasonable satisfaction of BHS and ECS. ECS shall have no responsibility for any 
environmental contamination of the Premises that existed prior to ECS’s occupancy of the 
Premises. 

SE C T I ON 7.4 Waiver of Certain Claims.  

Except with respect to damage or injury caused by BHS’s willful acts or gross 
negligence, ECS waives all claims it may have against BHS for damage or injury to property 
sustained by ECS or any persons claiming through ECS or by any occupant of the Premises, or 
by any other person, resulting from the Improvements or Land, or any past improvements, 
equipment or appurtenances on the Land becoming out of repair, or resulting from any accident 
on or about the Land or any other cause or resulting directly or indirectly from any act of neglect 
of any person, including BHS, to the extent permitted by law. Such waiver shall include, but not 
by way of limitation, damage caused by water, snow, frost, steam, excessive heat or cold, 
interruptions in utilities, sewage, gas, odors or noise, theft, or caused by bursting or leaking of 
pipes or plumbing fixtures, and shall apply equally whether any such damage results from the act 
or neglect of ECS or any other person, including BHS, to the extent permitted by law, and 
whether such damage be caused by, or result from, any thing or circumstance above mentioned 
or referred to, or to any other thing or circumstance whether of a like nature or of wholly 
different nature. In no event shall Payments abate as the result of any such occurrence except as 
otherwise set forth in this Agreement at Article 13 and Article 14. All personal property 
belonging to ECS or any occupant of the Premises that is in or on any part of the Premises, Land 
or Improvements shall be at the risk of ECS or of such other person only, and except as 
otherwise set forth in this Agreement, BHS shall not be liable for any damage thereto or theft or 
misappropriation of any such personal property.  



 

 - 20 - 

A R T I C L E  8 
MAINTENANCE/SERVICES 

SE C T I ON 8.1 Maintenance 

Except for damage covered under Article 13, BHS, at its sole cost, throughout the Term 
of this Agreement, will: (i) maintain the interior, non-structural portions of the Premises in 
compliance with this Agreement; (ii) keep the interior, non-structural portions of the Premises in 
good condition and repair, including without limitation, regular cleaning of the Premises and 
windows, reasonable wear and tear and loss by casualty excepted; (iii) make all necessary 
repairs, replacements and renewals, including, without limitation, light bulb replacement and 
minor painting and plumbing work, and all necessary alterations and restorations, as may be 
required under law or this Agreement with respect to the interior, non-structural portions of the 
Premises; and (iv) provide for trash and refuse removal from the Premises. 

SE C T I ON 8.2 BHS’s Obligations 

Except for damage covered under Article 13, BHS at its sole cost shall keep the roof, 
structure, exterior walls and windows, mechanical systems and equipment (including, without 
limitation the HVAC), and any parking and other common areas of the Improvements, in good 
and sanitary condition, working order and repair (including, without limitation being responsible 
for all maintenance, repair and replacements required from time to time with respect to such 
items). ECS shall promptly give BHS written notice of any repairs required by BHS pursuant to 
this Section 8.2, after which BHS shall have a reasonable opportunity to complete such 
replacement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ECS shall pay BHS for any repairs, maintenance 
and replacements required to areas of the Improvements outside the Premises caused, in whole or 
in part, by ECS or its employees, agents, contractors, or visitors.  

SE C T I ON 8.3 BHS’s Services 

The BHS shall, at its sole cost and expense, provide the following services: 

(a) Municipal water for drinking and bathroom uses; 

(b) Heating and cooling to the Premises during standard operating hours of the 
building; 

(c) Maintenance of exterior landscaping on the Land; 

(d) Snow and ice removal from exterior sidewalks, driveways and parking areas on 
the Land; 

(e) Security, including but not limited to electronic camera monitoring of the aquatics 
facility; 

(f) Pool cleaning and chemistry shall be in accordance with the Indiana State 
Department of Health requirements. Logs are available for inspection by ECS; 
and 



 

 - 21 - 

(g) Monitoring and regulation of pool water temperature of the aquatics facility 
consistent with applicable standards for public school pools in Indiana. 

The term "standard operating hours" shall be mutually agreed to by BHS and ECS to 
meet at a minimum the School Programming Schedule. At ECS’s request, BHS shall provide 
heating or air conditioning service to the Premises outside standard operating hours of the 
building and ECS shall reimburse BHS for the cost thereof, as reasonably calculated by BHS 
(without mark-up beyond the actual costs), as Additional Payments. 

If (a) any of the services described in Sections 8.3(a) through 8.3(g) are interrupted for 
any reason that is within the reasonable control of BHS to prevent and is not an emergency 
situation, and is not caused by ECS or its employees or contractors, or (b) any other utilities are 
interrupted due to the actions or omissions of BHS or BHS’s agents, contractors or employees, or 
(c) BHS unreasonably interferes with ECS’s access to the Premises (whether in connection with 
BHS’s reserved rights under Section 4.7 or performance of BHS’s obligations pursuant to 
Section 8.2), so that (in any such case) ECS is not able and actually ceases to conduct Permitted 
Uses Operational Payments shall abate during the period of such interruption. 

A R T I C L E  9 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND ORDINANCES 

SE C T I ON 9.1 Compliance with Laws and Ordinances 

ECS, at its sole cost, throughout the Term of this Agreement, will promptly comply with 
all applicable laws, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations and requirements with respect to the 
Land, Improvements and Premises, the orders, rules and regulations of applicable governmental 
agencies, and with all covenants and other matters of record (collectively, the “Legal 
Requirements”) that relate specifically to the specific use of the Premises or common areas in 
the Improvements or on the Land by ECS or ECS’s students or employees, or any deficiency in 
or violation of Legal Requirements with respect to the Premises that arises after the 
Commencement Date (provided that BHS and not ECS shall be responsible for any deficiency in 
or violation of Legal Requirements that relates to the Improvements or that results in the 
necessity for structural alterations or modifications to the Premises that would be required 
generally regardless of ECS’s specific use and occupancy of the Premises).  

SE C T I ON 9.2 Compliance with Environmental Laws  

During the Term, ECS will at all times comply with all Environmental Laws (defined 
below) with respect to ECS’s use of the Premises, Land and Improvements. Except for 
customary office supplies and cleaning supplies used in connection with ECS’s Permitted Use, 
ECS will not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be brought upon, kept, or used in or 
about the Land, Improvements or Premises by ECS, its agents, employees or contractors, without 
the prior written consent of BHS. If ECS breaches ECS’s obligations stated in the preceding 
sentence, or if the presence of Hazardous Materials on the Land, Improvements or Premises 
caused or permitted by ECS results in contamination of the Land, Improvements or Premises, 
then ECS will indemnify, defend and hold BHS harmless from any and all claims, judgments, 
damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, or losses (including, without limitation, diminution in 



 

 - 22 - 

value of the Land, Improvements or Premises, sums paid in reasonable settlement of claims, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, consultant fees and expert fees) which arise during or after the Term 
of this Agreement as a result of such contamination. This indemnification of BHS by ECS 
includes, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any investigation of site 
conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal or restoration work required by any federal, state, 
or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of Hazardous Materials (caused or 
permitted by ECS) present in, on or about the Premises or in the soil or ground water on or under 
the Land, Improvements or Premises. 

SE C T I ON 9.3 Survival 

The respective rights and obligations of BHS and ECS under this Article 9 will survive 
the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

A R T I C L E  10 
ALTERATIONS, SIGNS, MECHANIC’S LIENS AND OTHER LIENS 

SE C T I ON 10.1 ECS’s Changes and Alterations 

ECS may not make any alterations to the Premises (“Alterations”) without BHS’s prior 
written consent, which consent may be withheld or conditioned in BHS’s sole discretion. Before 
commencement of any work or delivery of any material onto the Premises, all contractors 
employed in connection therewith must deliver to BHS certificates of insurance evidencing each 
such contractor’s commercial general liability insurance and showing BHS as an additional 
insured. 

ECS will construct Alterations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and all 
applicable Legal Requirements (collectively, the “Building Requirements”). ECS, at its cost, 
will promptly restore any damage to the Premises or other parts of the Improvements caused by 
ECS, its contractors, agents and employees during the construction of ECS’s alterations or 
improvements. 

Prior to any construction that requires BHS’s consent or a permit, ECS agrees to submit 
to BHS the plans for same in reasonable detail. Within fifteen (15) days thereafter, BHS will 
notify ECS of any failures of ECS’s plans to conform to the Building Requirements. ECS will, 
within fifteen (15) days after receipt of any such notice, cause ECS’s plans to be revised to the 
extent necessary to obtain BHS’s approval and submit to BHS revised plans for BHS’s approval. 
The parties will repeat this process until such time as ECS submits plans that are approved by 
BHS. ECS will not commence any construction work until BHS has approved its plans. ECS will 
make no material deviation from the final set of plans, once approved by BHS, without BHS’s 
prior written consent. Approval of the plans by BHS will not constitute the assumption of any 
responsibility by BHS for their accuracy or sufficiency. 

SE C T I ON 10.2 ECS’s Signs 

ECS shall be permitted to hang or display signage with respect to the Premises which 
displays the ECS's records, awards and banners typically displayed in a home high school 
swimming pool. Such signage, records, awards, and banners to be used by ECS with respect to 



 

 - 23 - 

Premises must be approved by the Facilities Review Committee and by BHS, but BHS’s 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, provided however, that for avoidance of doubt ECS 
shall not, without BHS’s prior written approval (which may be withheld in BHS’s sole 
discretion), hang or display any advertising, or any logos or names of sponsors or of any 
commercial or nonprofit organizations. 

SE C T I ON 10.3 Freedom from Liens 

ECS will not suffer or permit any mechanic’s lien or other lien to be filed against the 
Premises, the Land, and/or the Improvements by reason of work, labor, services, equipment or 
materials supplied or claimed to have been supplied to the Premises at the request of ECS, or 
anyone claiming through ECS. If any such mechanic’s lien or other lien is filed, ECS will cause 
the lien to be either insured over (in a manner reasonably satisfactory to BHS) or discharged of 
record within thirty (30) days after notice that such lien was filed, or commence and diligently 
pursue the contest of such lien and deliver to BHS a bond or other security reasonably 
satisfactory to BHS, in an amount equal to 150% of the amount of such lien. If ECS fails to 
insure over or discharge such mechanic’s lien or other lien within such period or fails to 
diligently pursue such contest, then, in addition to any other right or remedy of BHS, after 
ten (10) days’ prior written notice to ECS, BHS may, but will not be obligated to, discharge such 
lien. Any amount paid by BHS, together with all costs, fees and expenses in connection 
therewith (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), together with interest thereon at the Default 
Rate set forth in Section 12.7, will be repaid by ECS to BHS on demand by BHS as Additional 
Payments. 

All materialmen, contractors, laborers and any other person furnishing any labor, 
services, materials, supplies or equipment to ECS with respect to the Premises, or any portion 
thereof, are hereby charged with notice that they must look exclusively to ECS to obtain payment 
for the same. Notice is hereby given that BHS will not be liable for any labor, services, materials, 
supplies, fixtures or equipment furnished or to be furnished to ECS upon credit, and that no 
mechanic’s lien or other lien for any such labor, services, materials, supplies, fixtures or 
equipment will attach to or affect the estate or interest of BHS in and to the Premises. 

A R T I C L E  11 
SURRENDER; HOLDING OVER 

SE C T I ON 11.1 Surrender of Premises 

If the parties do not agree to extend the Term or enter into a new Agreement upon the 
expiration of the Term, then ECS will on the expiration of the Term of this Agreement (and ECS 
will upon any re-entry by BHS upon the Premises pursuant to the terms of this Agreement) 
peaceably surrender and deliver up the Premises (including but not limited to all built-in fixtures 
and equipment) to BHS without delay, in good order, condition and repair, ordinary wear and 
tear and damage from fire or casualty excepted. ECS will remove all of its signage and other 
personal property, trade fixtures, and furnishings from the Premises and repair all damage 
resulting from such removal. 



 

 - 24 - 

SE C T I ON 11.2 Holding Over 

Any holding over by ECS will not extend or renew the Term of this Agreement or to 
imply or create a new Agreement, but in such case ECS will pay to BHS (in addition to all 
Additional Payments) an amount as Operational Payments equal to 150% of the then current 
Operational Payments provided during each annual period or portion of an annual period during 
which ECS retains possession. ECS agrees to reimburse BHS for any damages incurred by such 
holding over. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if ECS and BHS are negotiating a renewal or 
extension of the term in good faith such 150% increase shall not apply (but Operational 
Payments will continue to be due and owing in the amounts provided for in Section 3.4) and ECS 
shall not be considered to be holding over until the later of the Expiration Date or written notice 
from BHS that such negotiations are terminated. 

A R T I C L E  12 
DEFAULTS OF ECS 

SE C T I ON 12.1 Events of Default 

Any one or more of the following events will constitute an “Event of Default” under this 
Agreement: 

(a) If ECS fails to pay Operational Payments within thirty (30) business days after 
such Operational Payments are due, or if ECS fails to pay Mid-Term Capital 
Amount, Additional Payments, or any other obligation to be paid by ECS under 
this Agreement, within thirty (30) business days following the receipt of written 
notice that such payment is past due; provided, however, that notice of failure to 
pay Operational Payments, Additional Payments or any other obligation to be 
paid by ECS under this Agreement, shall not be required for any subsequent 
failure during any consecutive twelve (12) month period; or 

(b) If ECS defaults in performing any of the terms contained in this Agreement, other 
than those referred to in Section 12.1(a), and such default continues for a period 
of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof given by BHS to ECS, or in the 
case of such a default or contingency which cannot with due diligence be cured 
within thirty (30) days, ECS fails to commence to cure the same within such 
thirty (30) day period, and thereafter fails to cure the same during the shorter of (i)
 such period as may be necessary for the curing thereof promptly with due 
diligence or (ii) a period of sixty (60) days after written notice of such default is 
given by BHS to ECS; provided, however, that notice shall not be required for 
any subsequent default during any consecutive twelve (12) month period; or 

(c) If (i) ECS makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (ii) ECS files a 
voluntary petition under any law having for its purpose the adjudication of ECS a 
bankrupt, or ECS is adjudged a bankrupt pursuant to an involuntary petition in 
bankruptcy (and with respect to such involuntary petition filed against ECS, ECS 
fails to secure a stay or discharge thereof within sixty (60) days after such filing); 
(iii) a receiver is appointed for the property of ECS (and ECS does not regain 



 

 - 25 - 

possession within sixty (60) days after such appointment); or (iv) any department 
of the state or federal government, or any officer thereof duly authorized, takes 
possession of the business or property of ECS (and ECS does not regain 
possession within sixty (60) days); or 

(d) If ECS ceases or fails to hold any licenses, permits, certifications or other 
authorizations necessary under Legal Requirements for the use of the Premises by 
ECS and fails to reinstate same within ten (10) days after receipt of notice; 
provided, however, that notice shall not be required for any subsequent failure 
during any consecutive twelve (12) month period; or 

(e) If ECS violates Article 16 of this Agreement, or abandons the Premises 
(“abandons” or “abandonment” under this Agreement shall mean vacating or 
failing to occupy the Premises for more than thirty (30) days while ECS is 
delinquent in any Payments). 

SE C T I ON 12.2 BHS’s Remedies 

Following an Event of Default, BHS may, at its election, in addition to all other rights 
and remedies afforded BHS under this Agreement or by law or equity, take any one or more of 
the following actions: 

a BHS may terminate the Agreement and obtain possession of the Premises by 
delivery of a notice of termination to ECS. Such termination will be immediately 
effective and BHS, if necessary, is entitled to commence immediately an action in 
summary proceedings to recover possession of the Premises. No receipt of money by 
BHS from ECS after the termination of this Agreement will reinstate, continue or extend 
the Term, nor affect or waive any notice given by BHS to ECS prior to such receipt of 
such money. BHS will use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate damages caused 
by a default or breach of ECS. After such termination, BHS may recover all Payments 
(including Additional Payments) accrued and unpaid for the period up to and including 
such termination date, as well as all other additional sums payable by ECS under this 
Agreement up to and including such termination date. In addition, BHS may recover as 
damages for loss of the bargain and not as a penalty the sum of: (i) the aggregate sum 
which at the time of such termination represents the excess, if any, of the present value of 
the aggregate Payments at the same annual rate for the remainder of the Term as then in 
effect over the then present value of the then aggregate fair Paymentsal value of the 
Premises for the balance of the Term immediately prior to such termination, such present 
worth to be computed in each case on the basis of a discount at the then current five-year 
Treasury Bill rate from the respective dates upon which such Payments would have been 
payable under this Agreement had the Term not been terminated; and (ii) any additional 
damages, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs which BHS sustains by 
reason of the breach of any of the covenants of this Agreement other than for the payment 
of Payments. 

b BHS may, as an alternative to terminating the Agreement, serve a written demand 
for possession of the Premises. BHS will be entitled to possession of the Premises and 



 

 - 26 - 

ECS will then have no further right to possession under the Agreement. ECS will remain 
liable to BHS for the payment of all Payments and other charges, which ECS has agreed 
to pay under this Agreement throughout the remainder of the Term. If BHS elects to 
terminate ECS’s rights to possession, access or use under this Agreement, as provided, it 
may from time to time, without terminating this Agreement, make such alterations and 
repairs as may be reasonably necessary in order to use the Premises, and to use all or any 
part of the Premises for such term or terms (which may be for a term extending beyond 
the Term of this Agreement) and upon such payments and such other terms and 
conditions as BHS in its reasonable discretion may deem advisable. Upon each such re-
use, all payments and other sums received by BHS from such re-use will be applied first, 
to reimburse BHS for real estate commissions and other expenses actually incurred by 
BHS; second, to the payment of any indebtedness other than Payments due under this 
Agreement from ECS to BHS; third, to the payment of Payments and other charges then 
due from ECS, and the residue, if any, will be held by BHS and applied in payment of 
future Payments as the same may become due and payable. If such rentals and other sums 
received from such reletting during any month are insufficient to pay the Payments and 
other charges due from ECS, ECS agrees to pay such deficiency to BHS. Such deficiency 
will be calculated and paid monthly. No such re-entry or taking possession of such 
Premises by BHS may be construed as an election on its part to terminate this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any such reletting without termination, BHS may at any time elect to 
terminate this Agreement for such previous breach. 

SE C T I ON 12.3 BHS Payment of Expenses 

If ECS fails to (i) maintain, deliver and pay for any of the insurance policies required by 
Article 6, or (ii) make any other payment, or perform any other act on its part to be made or 
performed, then BHS, after prior written notice to ECS as provided in Section 17.1, and without 
waiving or releasing ECS from any obligation of ECS contained in this Agreement, may, but will 
be under no obligation to do so: (a) obtain, pay for and maintain any of the insurance policies 
provided for in this Agreement; or (b) make any other payment or perform any other act on 
ECS’s part to be paid or performed as in this Agreement provided, and BHS may enter upon the 
Premises for any such purpose and take all such action as may be necessary therefor. BHS’s 
exercise of its rights under this Section 12.3 will not be deemed to be a waiver of the default or 
release of ECS. All sums so paid by BHS, including reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection 
with the performance of any such act by BHS, together with interest thereon at the Default Rate 
from the date of making such expenditure by BHS, will be Additional Payments and will be 
payable to BHS on demand or, at the option of BHS, may be added to any monthly rental then 
due or thereafter becoming due under this Agreement. BHS will have the same rights and 
remedies in the event of nonpayment of Additional Payments as in the case of default by ECS in 
the payment of other Payments. 

SE C T I ON 12.4 No Waiver 

No failure by BHS or by ECS to insist upon the performance of any of the terms of this 
Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy consequent upon an Event of Default, and no 
acceptance by BHS of full or partial Payments from ECS or any third party during the 
continuance of any Event of Default, will constitute a waiver of any Event of Default or of any 



 

 - 27 - 

of the terms of this Agreement. None of the terms of this Agreement to be performed by BHS or 
by ECS, and no Event of Default, will be waived, except by a written instrument executed by 
BHS and/or by ECS, as the case may be. No waiver of any Event of Default will affect this 
Agreement, but each of the terms of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect with 
respect to any other then existing or subsequent Event of Default. No waiver of any Event of 
Default will be implied from any omission by BHS to take any action on account of such Event 
of Default, and no express waiver will affect any Event of Default other than the Event of 
Default specified in the express waiver and that only for the time and to the extent therein stated. 
One or more waivers by BHS will not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent Event of Default 
of the same term. 

SE C T I ON 12.5 Cumulative Remedies 

Each remedy or right of BHS provided for in this Agreement will be cumulative and will 
be in addition to every other right or remedy provided for in this Agreement, or now or hereafter 
existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and the exercise or the beginning of the 
exercise by BHS of any one or more of such rights or remedies will not preclude the 
simultaneous or later exercise by BHS of any or all other rights or remedies. 

SE C T I ON 12.6 Waiver by ECS 

ECS waives, to the extent permitted by law, any and all right of redemption or reentry or 
repossession or to revive the validity and existence of this Agreement in the event that ECS will 
be dispossessed by a judgment or by order of any court having jurisdiction over the Premises. 

SE C T I ON 12.7 Default Rate 

Except as may be otherwise provided in this Agreement to the contrary, any Payments or 
other amount due to BHS under this Agreement not paid within thirty (30) business days after 
ECS’s receipt of written notice that such Payments are past due will bear interest at an annual 
rate (the “Default Rate”) equal to the then applicable Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (or if The 
Wall Street Journal does not then publish a Prime Rate, then the Prime Rate established by the 
then nationally recognized authoritative source) per annum from the date when the same is due 
under this Agreement until the same will be paid, but in no event in excess of the maximum 
lawful rate permitted to be charged by BHS against ECS. 

SE C T I ON 12.8 Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event of default under this Agreement, the defaulting party will upon demand 
reimburse the non-defaulting party for all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the 
non-defaulting party as a result of such default.  

SE C T I ON 12.9 BHS’s Default 

If BHS fails to perform any obligation specified in this Agreement and such default 
continues for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by ECS to BHS (or for such 
longer period to the extent that the cure is not reasonably capable of being completed within such 
30-day period and BHS has by then commenced such cure and diligently pursues the cure 



 

 - 28 - 

thereafter), then, in addition to any other remedies to which ECS may be entitled under this 
Agreement or under law, ECS may, after the continuance of any such default beyond the 
applicable notice and cure period specified above, bring a claim for damages, constructive 
eviction or injunctive relief against BHS. Each remedy or right of ECS provided for in this 
Agreement will be cumulative, and the exercise or the beginning of the exercise by ECS of any 
one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by 
ECS of any or all other rights or remedies. 

A R T I C L E  13 
DESTRUCTION AND RESTORATION 

SE C T I ON 13.1 Restoration 

ECS shall promptly notify BHS of any damage to the Premises by fire or other casualty. 
BHS shall promptly notify ECS of any damage to the Premises by fire or other casualty if such 
fire or other casualty is caused by another party's use of the Premises. If the Premises or any 
common areas of the Improvements providing access to the Premises shall be damaged by fire or 
other casualty, BHS shall (a) cause an architect or contractor to promptly deliver to both BHS 
and ECS in writing such architect’s or contractor’s good faith opinion (the “Architect’s 
Opinion”) as to the length of time required to cause the damage to be repaired and restored, and 
(b) provided that this Agreement is not terminated as provided herein, BHS shall thereafter use 
available insurance proceeds to restore the same as expeditiously as possible, provided, however, 
that ECS shall be responsible for the insurance deductible and any uninsured or underinsured 
portion of repairs or restoration caused by ECS or ECS’s employees or students, or by spectators 
or other participants at events within the Permitted Uses. Any restoration shall be to substantially 
the same condition as prior to the casualty, except for modifications required by zoning and 
building codes and other Legal Requirements, any other modifications to the common areas 
deemed desirable by BHS (provided access to the Premises is not materially impaired), and 
except that BHS shall not be required to repair or replace any of ECS’s furniture, furnishings, 
fixtures, systems or equipment, or any alterations or improvements. ECS shall reasonably 
cooperate in vacating the Premises to the extent reasonably required to avoid any interference or 
delay in BHS’s repair work. Promptly following completion of BHS’s work, ECS shall repair 
and replace ECS’s furniture, furnishings, fixtures, systems or equipment, subject to and in 
compliance with the other provisions of this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 13.2 Abatement of Payments 

BHS shall not be liable for any inconvenience or annoyance to ECS or its visitors, or 
injury to ECS’s operations, programs or events resulting in any way from such damage or the 
repair thereof. However, BHS shall allow ECS a proportionate abatement of Payments from the 
date of the casualty through the earlier to occur of (a) ECS’s commencement of activities in the 
Premises following the BHS’s substantial completion of BHS’s repair obligations hereunder or 
(b) thirty (30) days after BHS shall have substantially completed such repair or restorations 
required hereunder (or the date that BHS would have substantially completed such repairs, but 
for delays by ECS or any other occupant of the Premises, or any of their agents, employees, 
invitees, transferees and contractors), provided such abatement: (i) shall apply only to the extent 
the Premises are unusable for the purposes permitted under this Agreement and not used by ECS 



 

 - 29 - 

as a result thereof, based proportionately on the square footage of the Premises so affected and 
not used, and (ii) shall not apply if the damage is caused by the intentional misconduct of ECS or 
its agents, students, employees, spectators or other participants at events within the Permitted 
Uses, or contractors. ECS agrees that the abatement of Payments provided herein shall be ECS’s 
sole recourse in the event of such damage, and waives any other rights ECS may have under any 
applicable law to perform repairs or terminate the Agreement by reason of damage to the 
Premises or the Improvements (except for those termination rights expressly contained in 
Section 13.3 below). 

SE C T I ON 13.3 Termination of Agreement 

If the Architect’s Opinion indicates that such repairs and restoration shall take in excess 
of three hundred sixty-five (365) days from the date of the casualty or if such casualty occurs 
during the last year of the Term, then notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary, either BHS 
or ECS may elect to terminate this Agreement by notifying the other party in writing of such 
termination within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Architect’s Opinion. In addition, ECS 
reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if the restoration is not completed within the 
longer of the period estimated by the Architect’s Opinion as needed for restoration or three 
hundred sixty-five (365) days from the date of casualty (subject in either case to extension for 
force majeure), or in the event BHS is unable to complete such repairs and restoration because of 
inadequate insurance funds.  

A R T I C L E  14 
CONDEMNATION 

SE C T I ON 14.1 Condemnation of Premises 

If at least ten percent (10%) of the rentable area of the Premises shall be taken by power 
of eminent domain or condemned by a competent authority or by conveyance in lieu thereof for 
public or quasi-public use (“Condemnation”), including any temporary taking for a period of 
one year or longer, then either BHS or ECS may elect to terminate this Agreement effective on 
the date possession for such use is so taken, by giving notice to the other party no later than one 
hundred and twenty (120) days after receiving notice of the filing of the Condemnation. If: (i) 
less than the foregoing amount of the Premises is taken, but the taking includes or affects a 
material portion of the Premises or Improvements, or BHS’s economical operation thereof, or (ii) 
the taking is temporary and will be in effect for less than the foregoing period but more than 
thirty (30) days, then in either such event, BHS may elect to terminate this Agreement upon at 
least thirty (30) days’ prior notice to ECS. If less than the foregoing amount of the Premises is 
taken, but the taking includes or affects a material portion of the Premises that is integral to 
ECS’s continued use of the Premises, then ECS may elect to terminate this Agreement upon at 
least thirty (30) days’ prior notice to BHS. The parties further agree that: (a) if this Agreement is 
terminated, all Operational Payments shall be apportioned as of the date of such termination or 
the date of such taking, whichever shall first occur, (b) if the taking is temporary, Operational 
Payments shall be abated for the period of the taking, and BHS may seek a condemnation award 
therefor (and the Term shall not be extended thereby), and (c) if this Agreement is not terminated 
but any part of the Premises is permanently taken, the Operational Payments shall be 
proportionately abated based on the square footage of the Premises so taken. 



 

 - 30 - 

SE C T I ON 14.2 Condemnation Award 

BHS shall be entitled to receive the entire award or payment in connection with such 
Condemnation and ECS hereby assigns to BHS any interest therein for the value of ECS’s 
unexpired leasehold estate or any other claim and waives any right to participate therein, except 
that ECS shall have the right to file any separate claim available to ECS for moving expenses 
and any taking of ECS’s personal property, provided such award is separately payable to ECS 
and does not diminish the award available to BHS or any lender.  

A R T I C L E  15 
ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFERS 

SE C T I ON 15.1 Transfers Prohibited 

ECS may not at any time mortgage, hypothecate, pledge or grant a security interest in 
ECS’s interest in this Agreement or in the Premises. In addition, except as otherwise expressly 
provided herein, ECS will not at any time, without the prior written consent of BHS in each 
instance: (i) assign or transfer this Agreement; (ii) grant any rights under this Agreement 
regarding the Premises or any part thereof; or (iii) permit the use or occupancy of the Premises or 
any part thereof for any purpose other than the Permitted Use or by anyone other than ECS and 
ECS’s employees, students, authorized spectators and invitees, including other schools and their 
respective students, employees, invitees, and authorized spectators at swimming and diving 
competitions involving ECS and included in the Permitted Uses. Any such action on the part of 
ECS will be void and of no effect. BHS and ECS agree that BHS may withhold or condition its 
consent to any proposed transfer in BHS’s reasonable discretion. To obtain BHS’s consent, ECS 
will, by notice in writing, advise BHS of its intention from, on and after a stated date to assign or 
transfer its interest as ECS in this Agreement, or sublet any part or all of the Premises for the 
balance or any part of the Term. ECS’s notice will state the name and address of the proposed 
subtenant or assignee, and contain a true and complete copy of the proposed sublease or 
assignment. Any transfer made without complying with this Article shall, at BHS’s option, be 
null, void and of no effect, or shall constitute an Event of Default by ECS under this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 15.2 Permitted Transfer 

Notwithstanding the prohibition set forth in Section 15.1 above, ECS may, without 
BHS’s consent, assign this Agreement to (a) an entity that is controlled by, in control of, or under 
common control with ECS (an “Affiliate”), (b) any entity with whom ECS merges, consolidates 
or engages in any reorganization, or (c) any entity succeeding to all or a substantial portion of the 
operations and assets of ECS (each, a “Permitted Transfer”). BHS shall have no right to 
recapture any or all of the Premises or terminate the Agreement or to seek the payment of any 
costs of the BHS in connection with such Permitted Transfer. BHS shall be notified of such 
Permitted Transfer and shall be given a copy of the transfer documents promptly after the 
Permitted Transfer.  

SE C T I ON 15.3 Recapture 

Except in the case of a Permitted Transfer, BHS shall have the option, by giving notice to 
ECS within thirty (30) days after receipt of ECS’s notice of any proposed transfer of its rights 



 

 - 31 - 

under this Agreement or with respect to the entire Premises, to recapture the Premises. Such 
recapture notice shall cancel and terminate this Agreement with respect to the Premises as of the 
date stated in ECS’s notice as the effective date of the proposed transfer provided, however, if 
BHS notifies ECS that BHS elects to exercise this recapture right, ECS may, within five (5) 
business days of its receipt of BHS’s recapture notice, notify BHS that ECS withdraws its 
request to transfer, in which case ECS shall continue to Agreement all of the Premises, subject to 
the terms of this Agreement and BHS’s recapture notice shall be null and void. ECS shall 
surrender and vacate the Premises when required hereunder in accordance with Section 11.1, and 
any failure to do so shall be subject to Section 11.2. 

SE C T I ON 15.4 Effect of Transfer 

BHS’s consent to any assignment, subletting, or transfer will not constitute a waiver of 
BHS’s right to withhold its consent to any future assignment, subletting or transfer. Any 
assignment or transfer hereunder will not release or discharge ECS of or from any liability, 
whether past, present or future, under this Agreement, and ECS will continue to be fully liable 
hereunder. The assignee will agree to comply with and be bound by all of the terms, covenants, 
conditions, provisions and agreements of this Agreement to the extent of the space or rights 
assigned, and ECS will deliver to BHS promptly after execution, an executed copy of each such 
sublease or assignment and an agreement of compliance by each such assignee. If this 
Agreement is assigned, BHS may, after default by ECS, collect Payments from the assignee, 
subtenant or occupant, and apply the net amount collected to the Payments, but no such 
assignment, subletting, occupancy or collection will be deemed a waiver of this covenant, or the 
acceptance of the assignee, subtenant or occupant as ECS, or a release of ECS from the further 
performance by ECS of covenants on the part of ECS herein contained. Whether or not BHS 
shall grant consent to any proposed transfer, ECS shall pay the reasonable legal fees (not to 
exceed $2,000) incurred by BHS in considering ECS’s request, within thirty (30) days after 
BHS’s written request. 

A R T I C L E  16 
SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE, AND ATTORNMENT 

SE C T I ON 16.1 Certain Definitions 

For purposes of this Agreement, “Lender” shall mean the holder of any Mortgage at the 
time in question and “Mortgage” shall mean all mortgages, deeds of trust, ground leases and 
other such encumbrances now or hereafter placed upon the Land or Improvements, or any part 
thereof, and all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements or extensions thereof, and 
all indebtedness now or hereafter secured thereby and all interest thereon. 

SE C T I ON 16.2 Subordination by ECS 

Prior to delivery of the Premises to ECS, BHS shall deliver to ECS a non-disturbance, 
attornment and subordination agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to ECS, executed by any 
current Lender of a Mortgage of the Premises, if any. This Agreement is subject and subordinate 
to all Mortgages now or hereafter existing, and all other encumbrances and matters of public 
record applicable to the Land and Improvements, provided that with respect to subordination to a 



 

 - 32 - 

future Mortgage, such subordination shall be conditioned upon BHS obtaining for the benefit of 
ECS a so-called Subordination and Non-Disturbance Agreement executed by the applicable 
Lender in a form reasonably acceptable to ECS. Whether before or after any foreclosure or 
power of sale proceedings are initiated or completed by any Lender or a deed in lieu is granted 
(or any ground Agreement is terminated), ECS agrees, upon written request of any such Lender 
or any purchaser at such sale, to attorn and pay Payments to such party, and recognize such party 
as counterparty to this Agreement (provided such Lender or purchaser shall agree not to disturb 
ECS’s occupancy so long as an Event of Default by ECS does not remain uncured hereunder, on 
a form of agreement reasonably acceptable to such party and ECS), it being understood that, 
without the Lender’s agreement, in the event of attornment no Lender shall be: (i) liable for any 
act or omission of BHS, or subject to any offsets or defenses which ECS might have against BHS 
(arising prior to such Lender becoming BHS under such attornment) or (ii) bound by any prepaid 
Operational Payments not actually received by such Lender, or bound by any modification of 
this Agreement not consented to by such Lender. Any Lender may elect to make this Agreement 
prior to the lien of its Mortgage by written notice to ECS, and if the Lender of any prior 
Mortgage shall require, this Agreement shall be prior to any subordinate Mortgage; such 
elections shall be effective upon written notice to ECS, or shall be effective as of such earlier or 
later date set forth in such notice. ECS agrees to give any Lender by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, a copy of any notice of default served by ECS upon BHS, provided that prior to such 
notice ECS has been notified in writing (by way of service on ECS of a copy of an assignment of 
Agreements, or otherwise) of the address of such Lender. ECS further agrees that if BHS shall 
have failed to cure such default within the time permitted BHS for cure under this Agreement, 
any such Lender whose address has been provided to ECS shall have an additional period of 
thirty (30) days in which to cure (or such additional time as may be required due to causes 
beyond such Lender’s reasonable control, including time to obtain possession of the Land and 
Improvements by appointment of receiver, power of sale or judicial action). Except as expressly 
provided to the contrary herein, the provisions of this Article shall be self-operative; however, 
ECS shall execute and deliver, within fifteen (15) days after written request therefor, such 
documentation as BHS or any Lender may reasonably request from time to time, whether prior to 
or after a foreclosure or power of sale proceeding is initiated or completed, a deed in lieu is 
delivered, or a ground Agreement is terminated, in order to further confirm or effectuate the 
matters set forth in this Article in recordable form. 

A R T I C L E  17 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

SE C T I ON 17.1 Notices 

All notices or demands required or desired to be given by either party to the other with 
respect to this Agreement or the Premises will be in writing, will be addressed as provided 
below, and will be: (i) delivered personally, in which case the notice or demand will be deemed 
given and served upon receipt or refusal to accept such notice; or (ii) sent by a nationally 
recognized overnight courier service, prepaid or billed to sender, in which case the notice or 
demand will be deemed given and served upon receipt or refusal to accept receipt. Either party 
may change its address or add additional parties for receipt of notices by giving notice of such 
change to the other party in accordance with the provisions of this Section. 



 

 - 33 - 

To EHFA or BHS: Elkhart Health, Fitness and Aquatics, Inc. and 
Beacon Health System, Inc. 
615 N. Michigan Street 
South Bend, Indiana 46601 
Attn: CEO and CFO 

To ECS: Elkhart Community Schools 
2720 California Road 
Elkhart, Indiana 46514 
Attn: Superintendent 

SE C T I ON 17.2 Quiet Enjoyment 

BHS covenants and agrees that ECS, upon paying the Payments, and upon performing 
the terms of this Agreement on its part to be performed, will lawfully and quietly hold, occupy 
and enjoy the Premises for the Permitted Uses at the times scheduled on the School 
Programming Schedule during the Term of this Agreement without hindrance or molestation by 
BHS or by any person or persons claiming under, by or through BHS, subject to the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 17.3 BHS’s Continuing Obligations 

References to EHFA or BHS in this Agreement so far as covenants or obligations on the 
part of BHS are concerned, is limited to the owner or owners at the time in question of the fee of 
the Premises. In the event of any transfer, the then grantor will be automatically relieved after the 
date of such transfer of all liability for the performance of any obligations on the part of BHS or 
EHFA contained in this Agreement thereafter to be performed, provided that any funds in the 
hands of the then grantor at the time of such transfer, in which ECS has an interest, will be 
turned over to the grantee, and any amount then due and payable to ECS by the then grantor 
under any provision of this Agreement will be paid to ECS. The obligations contained in this 
Agreement on the part of EHFA or BHS will, subject to the aforesaid, be binding on their 
respective successors and assigns during their respective successive periods of ownership.  

SE C T I ON 17.4 Estoppel Statement 

ECS shall from time to time, within fifteen (15) days after written request from BHS, 
execute, acknowledge and deliver a ECS estoppel certificate in customary form reasonably 
requested by BHS. If ECS fails to respond within the required fifteen (15) day period, then BHS 
may send ECS a second notice requesting execution of the estoppel certificate and indicate 
therein that a failure to execute same within five (5) days after receipt shall constitute an Event 
of Default. If ECS fails to provide the ECS Estoppel Certificate within five (5) days after receipt 
of the second notice, then such failure shall constitute an Event of Default. 

SE C T I ON 17.5 Severability 

If any term of this Agreement will, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the 
remaining terms of this Agreement will not be affected thereby, but each term of this Agreement 
will be valid to the fullest extent permitted by law.  



 

 - 34 - 

SE C T I ON 17.6 Governing Law 

This Agreement will be construed and be enforceable in accordance with the internal 
laws of the State of Indiana. 

SE C T I ON 17.7 Successors and Assigns 

The covenants and agreements herein contained will bind and inure to the benefit of 
EHFA, BHS and ECS, and their respective permitted successors and assigns. 

SE C T I ON 17.8 Captions 

The caption of each article and section of this Agreement is for convenience and 
reference only, and in no way defines, limits or describes the scope or intent of such article or 
section of this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 17.9 Relationship of Parties 

This Agreement does not create the relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, 
joint venture, or of any association or relationship between EHFA, BHS and ECS, the sole 
relationship among EHFA, BHS and ECS being that of arms-length contracting parties. For 
avoidance of doubt, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary, including references to 
“partnership” or “partner together”, this Agreement does not create a partnership for legal 
purposes. 

SE C T I ON 17.10 Entire Agreement 

All preliminary and contemporaneous negotiations are merged into and incorporated in 
this Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Exhibits, contains the entire agreement 
between the parties and will not be modified or amended in any manner except by an instrument 
in writing executed by the parties. 

SE C T I ON 17.11 Survival 

All obligations (together with interest or money obligations at the Default Rate) accruing 
prior to expiration of the Term of this Agreement will survive the expiration or other termination 
of this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 17.12 Force Majeure 

Other than for ECS’s obligations under this Agreement that can be performed by the 
payment of money, whenever a period of time is prescribed in this Agreement for action to be 
taken by either party, such party will not be liable or responsible for, and there will be excluded 
from the computation of any such period of time, any delays due to strikes, labor unrest, pickets, 
riots, acts of God, inclement weather, shortages of labor or materials, war, governmental laws, 
regulations, or restrictions, or any other causes of any kind whatsoever which are beyond the 
control of such party. 



 

 - 35 - 

SE C T I ON 17.13 Limited Liability 

ECS agrees to look solely to EHFA’s interest in the Premises (as such interest is 
constituted from time to time) for the enforcement of any judgment, award, order or other 
remedy under or in connection with this Agreement or any related agreement, instrument or 
document or for any other matter whatsoever relating thereto or to the Improvements or 
Premises. Under no circumstances shall any present or future, direct or indirect, principals or 
investors, general or limited partners, officers, directors, shareholders, trustees, beneficiaries, 
participants, advisors, managers, employees, agents or affiliates of BHS, or of any of the other 
foregoing parties, or any of their heirs, successors or assigns have any liability for any of the 
foregoing matters. In no event shall EHFA or BHS be liable to ECS for any consequential 
damages. 

SE C T I ON 17.14 Broker 

ECS and BHS each represent to the other that no broker has been involved with this 
transaction, and no party is entitled to receive a commission or other fee in connection herewith. 
Each party will indemnify and hold the other harmless from and against any and all 
commissions, fees and expenses and all claims therefor by any broker, salesman or other party in 
connection with or arising out of the indemnifying party’s action in entering into this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 17.15 Time is of the Essence 

Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

SE C T I ON 17.16 Waiver of Jury Trial 

EACH OF THE PARTIES MUTUALLY, KNOWINGLY, IRREVOCABLY, VOLUNTARILY AND 
INTENTIONALLY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR 
COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THE PARTIES AGAINST THE OTHER IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY FURTHER WARRANTS AND REPRESENTS THAT IT HAS REVIEWED 
THIS WAIVER WITH ITS LEGAL COUNSEL AND THAT EACH HAS WAIVED ITS JURY TRIAL RIGHTS 
FOLLOWING CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL. THIS WAIVER APPLIES TO ANY AND ALL 
SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS AND ANY OTHER AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT. IN THE 
EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE FILED AS A WRITTEN CONSENT TO A TRIAL BY THE 
COURT SITTING WITHOUT A JURY. 

SE C T I ON 17.17 Authority 

Each of EHFA and BHS represents and warrants that they are duly organized and 
qualified nonprofit corporations, that they have the power and authority to enter into this 
Agreement and perform all of their respective obligations under this Agreement, and that each 
such individual signing this Agreement on behalf of EHFA and BHS is authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement on behalf of EHFA and BHS.  

ECS represents and warrants that ECS is a duly organized and qualified political 
subdivision of the State of Indiana, that such political subdivision of the State of Indiana has the 
power and authority to enter into this Agreement and perform all of its obligations under this 



 

 - 36 - 

Agreement, and that each such individual signing this Agreement on behalf of ECS is authorized 
to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of ECS, with all action by ECS as a political 
subdivision of the State of Indiana being taken. 

[Signatures on the following page] 



 

 (Signature Page to Agreement) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed as of the day and year first above written. 

ECS: 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

By:        

Name:       

Its:        

 

EHFA: 

ELKHART HEALTH, FITNESS AND AQUATICS, INC. 

By:        

Name:        

Its:        

 

     BHS 

BEACON HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. 

By:        

Name:        

Its:        

 

 

 



 

 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
LAND, IMPROVEMENTS AND PLAN OF PREMISES 

 

[Attached] 

 

 



 

 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 
RULES 

 
 (1) Window and Door Treatments. ECS shall not place anything or allow anything 
to be placed in the Premises near the glass of any door, partition, wall or window which may be 
unsightly from outside the Premises, and ECS shall not place or permit to be placed any article of 
any kind on any window ledge or on the exterior walls. Blinds, shades, awnings or other forms of 
inside or outside window devices shall not be placed in or about the outside windows or doors in 
the Premises except to the extent, if any, that the design, character, shape, color, material and 
make thereof is first approved or designated by BHS.  

 (2) Deliveries and Removals. Furniture, freight and other large or heavy articles, and 
all other deliveries may be brought into the Premises only at times and in the manner designated 
by BHS, and always at the ECS’s sole responsibility and risk.  

 (3) Locks and Keys. ECS shall use such standard key system designated by BHS on 
all keyed doors to and within the Premises, excluding any permitted vaults or safes (but BHS’s 
designation shall not be deemed a representation of adequacy to prevent unlawful entry or 
criminal acts, and ECS shall maintain such additional insurance as ECS deems advisable for such 
events). ECS shall not attach or permit to be attached additional locks or similar devices to any 
door or window, change existing locks or the mechanism thereof, or make or permit to be made 
any keys for any door other than those provided by BHS. If more than two keys for one lock are 
desired, BHS will provide them upon payment of BHS’s charges. In the event of loss of any keys 
furnished by BHS, ECS shall pay BHS’s reasonable charges therefor. The term “key” shall 
include mechanical, electronic or other keys, cards and passes. 

(4) Safety and Security Devices, Services and Programs. Safety and security 
devices, services and programs provided by BHS, if any, while intended to deter crime and 
ensure safety, may not in given instances prevent theft or other criminal acts, or ensure safety of 
persons or property. The risk that any safety or security device, service or program may not be 
effective, or may malfunction, or be circumvented by a criminal, is assumed by ECS with respect 
to ECS’s property and interests, and ECS shall obtain insurance coverage to the extent ECS 
desires protection against such criminal acts and other losses, as further described in Article VI. 
ECS agrees to cooperate in any reasonable safety or security program developed by BHS or 
required by Law. 

 (5)  Plumbing Equipment. The toilet rooms, urinals, wash bowls, drains, sewers and 
other plumbing fixtures, equipment and lines shall not be misused or used for any purpose other 
than that for which they were constructed and no foreign substance of any kind whatsoever shall 
be thrown therein.  

 (6)  Trash. All garbage, refuse, trash and other waste shall be kept in the kind of 
container, placed in the areas, and prepared for collection in the manner and at the times and 
places reasonably specified by BHS, subject to Section 9.2 respecting Hazardous Substances. 



 

 B-2 

BHS reserves the right to require that ECS participate in any recycling program designated by 
BHS. 

 (7) Use of Common Areas. Except as provided in the Agreement, ECS shall not use 
the common areas, including areas adjacent to the Premises, for any purpose other than ingress 
and egress, and any such use thereof shall be subject to the other provisions of this Agreement, 
including these Rules. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, ECS shall not allow 
anything to remain in any passageway, sidewalk, court, corridor, stairway, entrance, exit, 
elevator, parking or shipping area, or other area outside the Premises. 

 (8) Unattended Premises. Before leaving the Premises unattended, ECS shall close 
and securely lock all doors or other means of entry to the Premises and shut off all lights and 
water faucets in the Premises (except heat to the extent necessary to prevent the freezing or 
bursting of pipes). 

 (9) Responsibility for Compliance. ECS shall be responsible for ensuring 
compliance with these Rules, as they may be amended, by ECS’s employees and as applicable, 
by ECS’s agents, invitees, contractors, subcontractors, and suppliers. ECS shall cooperate with 
any reasonable program or requests by BHS to monitor and enforce the Rules, including taking 
appropriate action against such of the foregoing parties who violate these provisions. 



 

 Schedule 4.1 

Schedule 4.1 

PERMITTED USES 

 

 

 

 



 

 Schedule 4.2 

Schedule 4.2 

SCHOOL PROGRAMMING SCHEDULE 

 

 

DMS JST 3408137v13 













MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

January 24, 2017 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Gary Sawtelle 
 Tony Gianesi Kevin Scott 
 Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
 Dawn McGrath Bob Woods 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board reviewed the 1028 hearing process and procedures with Kevin Scott, 
Chief Financial Officer and Phil Faccenda of Barnes & Thornburg.  Superintendent 
Haworth discussed the Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council’s visit to 
Indianapolis along with Susan Daiber and Carolyn Morris who accompanied the 

students on the trip.  The Board discussed agenda items for the regular Board 

meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:10 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 

MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

January 24, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
approximately 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 

  Jeri E. Stahr 
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Mrs. Daiber opened the 1028 Public Hearing. 1028 Public 
Hearing 

Phil Faccenda of Barnes & Thornburg presented an overview of the 
hearing process and state requirements.  Mr. Faccenda stated the 2018 
Memorial High School Renovation project bonds will not exceed an 

original aggregate principal amount of Ten Million Dollars 
($10,000,000).  Todd Samuelson of H.J. Umbaugh and Associates, 
presented the current and potential debt service levy and capacity.  No 

increase in the debt service tax rate over 2016 certified debt service tax 
rate is anticipated due to the maturity and reduction in payments on 
other outstanding bonds.  Superintendent Rob Haworth stated a 5-year 

strategic plan was approved last fall.  He provided a brief history of 
Elkhart Community Schools and the many history makers including an 
Olympic medalist, NASA award winners, Pulitzer Prize winners, 

scientists, entrepreneurs and philanthropists as well as the thousands of 
students and graduates who have earned accolades for their 
accomplishments and countless students who have achieved success 

and returned to mentor the children of Elkhart.  How, in the past, 
change has always taken place to meet the needs of our students.  
Superintendent Haworth reiterated the Elkhart Promise – That every 

student will be known by name, supported and challenged by highly 
effective staff, and in partnership with the community will graduate 

college/career and life ready.  The resolution presented is the beginning 
of the process for change to the high school, junior highs being true 6, 
7, and 8 middle schools, and creating the physical space needed for Pre-

K. Superintendent Haworth demonstrated the areas of improvement 
including additions and renovations to provide additional 
music/performing arts classrooms; expanded and additional cafeteria 

and kitchen areas; renovations of other areas of the facility to 
accommodate additional students; and construction of a new secure 
front entrance. 

Presentation of 
2018 High 
School 

Renovation 
Project 



2 
 

The Board heard from: 
 

Alex Holtz, who spoke in favor of the bond issue, stating the need 
to move forward. 
 

Cephas Chigwada, who spoke in favor of the bond issue citing the 
importance of education and job training. 
 

Stacy Fann, who is opposed to the bond issue and questioning 
the rationale of the district’s plan to issue bonds rather than seek 
approval for all borrowing through a referendum.  In response to 

her inquiry, Superintendent Haworth stated combining the 
projects would raise taxes and the bond issues would not increase 
the tax rate outside of tax caps as this would have been the 

result with a referendum. 
 
Lou Pace, who spoke in favor of the bond issue and the need for 

facilities to improve and enhance performing arts and music. 
 
Ron Davis, President of the Elkhart County NAACP, on behalf of 

the organization and board that unanimously voted in favor of the 
bond issue. 

 
Adam Homo, who spoke in favor of the bond issue referencing 
the need for pathways and cross curricular teaching. 

 
Ronisha Beal, who spoke in favor of the bond issue and the 
concept of pathways. 

 
Hayley Boling, who spoke in favor of the bond issue to move 
forward with the Elkhart Promise. 

 
Brian Wiebe, Executive Director of the Horizon Education Alliance 
(HEA), who spoke in support of the bond on behalf of the alliance.  

Stating ECS is leading the way with the Pathways concept. 
 
Reed Davisson, who spoke in support of the bond issue 

expressing his desire to see a more individualized approach to 
learning and the schools of interest. 
 

Kurt Weimer, who spoke in support of the bond issue referencing 
other cities’ negative results from not moving forward and the 
need to pool our resources to have more options for our students. 

 
Rod Roberson, who spoke in support of the bond issue to begin 
the process of educating children from 3 years old through high 

school students able to refine their interests. 
 
Stephanie Krol, who spoke in support of the bond issue and the 

innovation and vision of the plan. 

Public 
Comment 



3 
 

 
Susan Wyse, who is opposed to the bond issue.  Mrs. Wyse would 

like to see the plan go forward without the high schools merging 
and the associated expense. 
 

Jeannette Jacobson, who is opposed to the bond issue, the 
freshman center and suggested the plan may not be beneficial for 
all students. 

 
Julie Bird, who spoke in support of the bond issue.  
 

Arvis Dawson, who spoke in support of the bond issue.  He stated 
his support of the Board and their due diligence. 
 

Jennifer Lefever, who spoke in support of the bond issue and how 
high school students currently only have access to half of the 
resources and the benefit of combining them. 

 
Heather Gerlach, who spoke in support of the bond issue and the 
opportunities it will provide to assist children to find their passion. 

 
Tom Kurth, who spoke in support of the bond issue stating the 

plan will help make Elkhart better again.  
 
Hannan Hakim, who spoke in support of the bond issue citing 

additional opportunities and resources. 
 
Regina Roberson, who spoke in support of the bond issue and the 

benefits of the plan. 
 
Mrs. Daiber closed the public hearing. Closed 1028 

Public Hearing 
 

Mr. Faccenda reviewed the Preliminary Determination/Reimbursement 

Resolution to include the 2018 High School Renovation project’s financial 
information:  maximum borrowing amount is $10,000,000 for a term 
not to exceed 20 years with an estimated interest expense of 

$5,474,548.  Estimated maximum annual payment will be $850,000 
with the maximum aggregate payment of $15,544,000. 
 

1028/Preliminary 

Determination/ 
Reimbursement 
Resolution 

 

  



4 
 

The Board members individually commented on the resolution.  Karen 
Carter stated the project is going forward, but how to manage the 

expenses with the ongoing other building needs with only two million 
dollars available in the capital project budget for maintenance and 
repairs.  Would this require asking those elementary schools in need to 

wait 5 additional years for parking lot repairs, carpeting, air handlers, 
boilers, chillers, and classroom needs such as white boards and 
technology? Some items like emergency lighting and PA systems are 

needed immediately. Mrs. Carter asked that more time be taken to 
develop the plans further before a funding resolution.  Rodney Dale 
commented on the strong feelings on both sides of the strategic plan 

and the need, going forward, to make it work primarily to be able to 
offer Pre-K at more locations.  He stated moving forward to get to the 
Pre-K programs will result in better high school students.  Jeri Stahr 

thanked all those who spoke and appreciated their attendance, and 
especially loved hearing Coach Kurth’s comments on community.  Ms. 
Stahr noted work on this plan has been going on for months keeping in 

mind what is best for our students in the future.  The resolution will 
finance a start of the plan.  Carolyn Morris commented she is the 
product of one high school and is in favor of what is best for ‘all’ 

children, adding the process takes a lot of work and time.  Doug Weaver 
also thanked everyone for coming and the passionate opinions 

expressed.  He quoted part of Rabbi Marvin Hier’s presidential inaugural 
address, “Because, the freedoms we enjoy are not granted in perpetuity, 
but must be reclaimed by each generation!’  “As our ancestors have 

planted for us, so we must plant for others. While it is not for us to 
complete the task, neither are we free to desist from them.”  Our goal is 
to teach freedom and opportunity.  Glenn Duncan clarified the vote this 

evening is on the finance resolution.  The strategic plan had previously 
been adopted.  He knows the community wants what is best for its 
students and the plan is financially sound to begin to make it happen.  

Susan Daiber told a story of a social studies teacher who asked students 
what they would do if they had $1,000.00 to improve education.  The 
student asked three individuals: the 70-year old illiterate father of five 

answered to make sure special needs students are taught to read; the 
privately educated woman replied arts and athletics were necessary in 
schools; and the husband wanted college education managers 

particularly in technical fields.  Mrs. Daiber identified the individuals as 
her father, mother and husband, and the need for all of these areas of 
education be provided for the students in our community. 

 
The Board adopted the 1028/Preliminary Determination/Reimbursement 
Resolution for the 2018 High School Renovation Project by a vote of six 

(6) Susan Daiber, Doug Weaver, Carolyn Morris, Glenn Duncan, Rodney 
Dale and Jeri Stahr in favor and one (1) Karen Carter, opposed. 

(Codified File 1617-97) 

 

  



5 
 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 
introduced themselves: Sydney Bias, a sophomore from Central High 

School (CHS) and Nolan Grose, a junior from Memorial High School 
(MHS).  In addition to SSAC, Sydney Bias plays the cello, is in Key club 
and on the yearbook committee.  Ms. Bias reported the following sports 

activities: Logan Brown recently broke a school and pool record at Clay; 
Swim coach Michelle Guipe was named NIC Coach of Year; Ross Kirkton 
was named to the IFCA Academic All State Team and JT Webb was 

named to the Region 2 All Stars; and the basketball is also doing well.  
Ms. Bias invited everyone to the basketball games this coming weekend 
and to Say What karaoke on February 8th.  Nolan Grose plays football 

and baseball in addition to SSAC.  Mr. Nolan thanked the Superintendent 
for Monday’s SSAC trip to Indianapolis.  Upcoming events include West 
Side’s class Olympics and a community cook off in concert with the Jazz 

café in April.  Mr. Nolan reported on wrestling, senior night for girls 
basketball, boys basketball, swimming, and the middle school wrestling 
matches to be hosted by Memorial.  Mr. Nolan thanked the Elkhart 

Education Foundation for their support of Memorial athletes. 
 

SSAC 
Representatives 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  

January 10, 2017 – Public Work Session  
January 10, 2017 – Board of Finance Meeting 

January 10, 2017 – Organizational Meeting 
January 10, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
January 17, 2017 – Public Work Session 

 

Approval of 

Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$5,841,996.16 as shown on the January 24, 2017, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1617-98) 
 

Payment of 
Claims  

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – 

December 31, 2016 and found it to be in order. 
 

Financial 

Report 

Kevin Scott, chief financial officer, reported the following fund loans 

were paid back effective December 31, 2016: $141,000 to General Fund 
from Referendum Tax Levy Fund, and $900,000 to Debt Service Fund 
from Retire/Sev Bond Fund. 

 

Fund Loan 

 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  hats and gloves 

and $270.00 from Karen Johnson and Flexible Concepts to pay 
negative lunch balances at Pinewood; $200.00 from Trinity United 

Methodist Women to be used for supplies for children through the 
nurse’s office at Woodland; and 60 hand-made hat and scarf sets 
from Ruth Ann Owen for distribution through social workers. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

  



6 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund.  In 
response to Board inquiry, additional discussions will take place 
regarding fundraising internet sites.(Codified File 1617-99) 

 

Fundraiser 
Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 
Policy 0130 – Functions, as initially presented at the Board’s January 

10th regular meeting.  In response to Board inquiry, Doug Thorne, 
district counsel/chief of staff, clarified the ‘best efforts’ revision. 
 

Board Policy 
0130 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Administrative 
Regulation KI – Application for Fundraiser Approval, as initially 
presented at the Board’s January 10th regular meeting.  The revisions 

included additional contact information and door to door solicitations. 
 

Administrative 
Regulation KI 

The Board requested additional research regarding the Redevelopment 

Commission appointment. 

Redevelopment 

Commission 
Appointment 

Karen Carter publicly disclosed her potential conflicts of interest and 

noted Board members pay for their insurance.  Doug Thorne, disclosed 
the potential conflict of Wesley Molyneaux, director of technology 
integration.  (Codified File 1617-100) 

 

Conflicts of 

Interest 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading of Board Policy 144.1 – Membership – 
Compensation, Insurance, Expenses and Travel. 

Board Policy 

144.1 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.12S – Employees in 
Miscellaneous Positions Compensation.  In response to Board inquiry, 
the position description of EACC Career Center Testing Specialist will be 

provided to all members. 
 

Board Policy 

3422.12S  

By unanimous action, the Board approved new course offerings in 

accordance with Board policy.  New courses include: College and Career 
Readiness Bridge: Math Ready/HS3465 and Math 10/HS3421.  (Codified 
File 1617-101) 

 

New Course 

Offerings 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following overnight trip 
requests:  Central and Memorial Japanese class students to travel to 

Yokohama City, Japan on July 21 thru August 5, 2017 as part of the 
Yamate Gakuin High School Exchange Program; Central Winter drumline 
students to travel to Indianapolis on February 10 and 11 to compete in 

the Indiana Percussion Association competition; and West Side social 
studies students to travel to Washington, DC on October 25 thru 29 to 
explore and discover the nation’s capital. 

 

Overnight Trip 
Request 



7 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the January 24, 2017 listing. (Codified File 1617-102) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 

Report 

An agreement regarding unpaid time for a certified staff member. 

(Codified Files 1617-103) 

Consent 

Agreement 
 

Retirement of certified staff member, James Langton, world 

language at Memorial, effective August 1, 2017 with 21 years of 
service. 
 

Certified  

Retirement 
 

Regular employment of classified employee, Jamie Greenway, 
paraprofessional at Cleveland, who successfully completed her 
probationary period on 1/18/17. 

 

Classified 
Employment 

Resignation of the following six (6) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Holly Hardy - bus helper at Transportation, 1/6/17 
Broc Hiatt – misc. food service receiving at Commissary,  

   1/10/17 
Julie Johnson – food service at Central, 2/15/17 
Nicole Quesinberry – food service at Beardsley, 1/3/17 

Collin Rowland – bus driver at Transportation, 1/13/17 
Linda Sedlock – food service at Feeser, 1/5/17 
 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Voluntary leave for classified employee Diedre Wright bus driver 
at Transportation beginning 1/3/17 and ending 4/7/17. 
 

Voluntary 
Leave 
 

Board member, Doug Weaver, congratulated the Elkhart Area Career 
Center on the tremendous turnout for their Open House last Sunday. 
 

From the Board 
 

Board members, Susan Daiber and Carolyn Morris commented on their 
recent trip with the SSAC students to Indianapolis.  The group met with 
legislators, heard various leadership speakers and toured the State 

House. 
 

From the Board 
 

The Board discussed the Elkhart Education Foundation financial 

information. 
 

From the Board 

 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 10:00 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

  



8 
 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

January 30, 2017 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:00 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
 Douglas K. Weaver  
   
  Rodney J. Dale 
Absent:  Glenn L. Duncan 
   
   
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a presentation by Hans Meeder, author of The Power and 

Promise of Pathways. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:00 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:    board of school trustees 

  Dr. haworth 

        

From: Kevin scott 

 
Date:  February 14, 2017 

 

Subject: appropriation transfers 

A report summarizing the transfer of appropriations within each of the state-approved 

funds at the end of the 2016 budget year is attached.  These transfers are done pursuant to the 

resolution approved by the Board in the November 22, 2016 Board meeting.   

 

If you have questions prior to the next Board meeting, please contact me at 262-5553. 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  January 30, 2017 

 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Jacquie Rost, Athletic Director 

   

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $750.00 for the girls/boys track team.  

This donation will go towards the purchase of team sweats, team shirts, shoes, equipment, and other 

miscellaneous costs associated with this program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Todd Cleveland 

Patrick Industries 

107 W. Franklin Street 

Elkhart IN  46516 





























































 GDBA-10 
Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

 
MISCELLANEOUS POSITION PAY SCHEDULE
               SOURCE 

            

CLASSIFICATION POSITION   AMOUNT   OF PAYMENT  
   

 
HIGH SCHOOL FOOTBALL: 

Event Supervisor     $50 per Event   ECS Gen Fund 
 
Adult
  Firemen    $18.78 per hour   ECS Gen Fund 

            

  Usher/Security    $50 per game   H.S. Ath. Dept 
  Ticket Sellers/Takers   $27 per game    " 
  Public Address Announcer  $15 per game    " 
    * Crowd Supervision Manager  1/2 of Master Contract Rate ECS Gen. Fund 
  Fan Bus Supervision   $15 + 2 Tickets per Trip  H.S. Ath. Dept. 
  Parking Director   $17 per hour   ECS Gen Fund 
  Parking Attendant   $12 per hour    " 
 

(Games @ N.S. and Tournament)  
HIGH SCHOOL BASKETBALL 

 
Event Supervisor     $50 per event             ECS Gen. Fund 
Tournament Supervisor     $100 per event             ECS Gen. Fund 
 
Adult
  Firemen    $18.78 per hour   ECS Gen Fund 

            

  Usher/Security    $50 per regular game  H.S. Ath. Dept 
       $25 per tournament session  " 
  Ticket Sellers/Takers   $27 per session    " 
  Timers/Scorers    $10 JV game    " 
       $15 Varsity game   " 
       $25 per tournament session  " 
  PA Announcer    $15 per session    " 
       * Crowd Supervision Manager  1/2 of Master Contract Rate ECS Gen. Fund 
  Fan Bus Supervision   $15 + 2 Tickets per trip  H.S. Ath. Dept. 
  Parking Director   $17 per hour-regular game ECS Gen. Fund 
       $17 per hour-tournament session  " 
  Parking Attendant   $12 per hour-regular game  " 
       $12 per hour-tournament session  " 
 

  Usher/Security    $6 + Ticket per regular game H.S. Ath. Dept. 
Student 

       $6 + Ticket per tournament session " 
  Ticket Takers    $10 per session    " 
  Cloakroom Attendant   $6 per regular game   " 
       $7 per tournament session  " 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 GDBA-10 
Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule Administrative Regulation 
 
               SOURCE 
CLASSIFICATION POSITION   AMOUNT   OF PAYMENT  
 

 
HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETICS 

Event Supervisor  
  Volleyball 
 Varsity/JV    $50 per event   ECS Gen Fund 
 Freshmen    $30 per event    " 
 Freshmen 3-way   $50 per event    " 
 4 team or less tourney  $50 per event    " 
 5 teams or more tourney  $100 per event    " 
  Soccer  
 Reg. season varsity & JV  $50 per event    " 
 Tournament    $100 per event    " 
  Swimming 
 Reg. season meet   $50 per event    " 
 All day tournament   $100 per event    " 
 Diving only    $50 per event    " 
  Wrestling 
 Varsity/JV    $50 per event    " 
 Super dual meet   $100 per event    " 
  Gymnastics 
 Varsity/JV    $50 per event    " 
 Invitational    $100 per event    " 
  Baseball/Softball 
 Varsity/JV    $50 per event    " 
 Freshmen    $50 per event    " 
 Tournament 4 teams   $100 per event    " 
 Tournament 5+ teams  $100 per event    " 
  Track 
 Dual or triangular meet  $50 per event    " 
 Invitational    $100 per event    " 
 

 
NON-ATHLETIC EVENTS (ECS RENTALS, MISCELLANEOUS ASSIGNMENTS): 

  Electronic Technical Service Mgr. $14.50 per hour   ECS Gen. Fund 
Adult 

       * Building Rental Manager  $14.50 per hour  (per Teachers Contract) " 
  Police/Firemen    $18.78 per hour    " 
  Swimming Pool Manager  $15.00 per hour    " 
  Swimming Pool Lifeguard (Certified) $6.25 per hour    " 
  Security    $10.00 per hour    " 
  Usher     $8.00 per event    "  
  Ticket Seller/Taker   $12.00 per event   " 
  Parking Director   $17.00 per hour    " 
 
   



Page 3 GDBA-10 
Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule Administrative Regulation 
 
               SOURCE 
CLASSIFICATION POSITION   AMOUNT   OF PAYMENT  

 
Parking Attendant   $12.00 per hour    " 

  Substitute Custodian   $12.19 per hour    " 
       * Intramurals    $6.50 per hour    " 
  Food Service Sub   $9.099.34 per hour     Food Service Fund 
  Food Service Sub (retired  $11.3311.64 per hour     “ 
  Food Service employee) 
  Food Service Driver Sub   $15.1715.59 per hour   “ 
 
 

  Stage Hand/Music Helper  $4.25 per hour   ECS Gen. Fund 
Student 

  Swimming Pool Lifeguard  current minimum wage   " 
  Usher     $6.00 per event    "  
  Ticket Taker    $8.00 per event    " 
  Cloakroom Attendant   $6.00 per event    " 
 
 

 
BEFORE & AFTER-SCHOOL CHILDCARE: 

  Provider    $12.40 per hour            Childcare Fund 214 
  Assistant    $9.35 per hour    “ 
  Babysitter    current minimum wage   “ 
 
   
In the event the federally established minimum wage exceeds the hourly rate set forth under this regulation, 
the minimum wage shall apply. 
 
 
 
*  Negotiated Rates  
  

 
 
 
 
 

January 26, 2016February 14, 2017 



























 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  February 14, 2017 

 

Human Resource Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective February 15, 2017: 

Cheryl Waggoner  Director of Human Resources  

b. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding unpaid time. 

 

c. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2016-17 school year: 

 

Amber Genovese  Hawthorne/Grade 2 

 

John Zahlmann  Hawthorne/Grade 6 (temporary contract) 

 
d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Ricky Fiene   Pierre Moran/Physical Education 

Began:  8/23/99   Resign:  2/10/17 

 

Cherise Richards  Riverview/Grade 2 

Began:  8/13/12   Resign:  5/26/17 

 

e. Medical Leave – We recommend a medical leave for the following employees: 

Rose Griffy   Roosevelt/Grade 2 

Begin:  2/3/17 pm  End:  2/28/17 

 

Amy Miller   Roosevelt/Special Education 

Begin:  8/15/17   End:  6/6/18 

 

f. Death – We regretfully report the death of the following employee: 

 

David Robinson  Monger/Physical Education   

Began:  8/1/03   Deceased:  1/25/17 

29 Years of Service 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

g. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee effective February 16, 2017: 

 

Jolene Ritchie  Hawthorne/Grade 5  41 Years of Service 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Administrative Appointment -  The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointments effective February 15, 2017: 

Anthony Gianesi   Chief Operating Officer 

Magdalena Lozano  Assistant Director of Human Resources 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employees:  

 

Ruth Iannarelli  Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/3/94   Retire: 5/26/17 

    Years of Service:  22 

 

James Rowe   Transportation/Head Mechanic 

Began: 1/1/81   Retire: 6/1/17 

    Years of Service:  36 

 

Cathy Spry   Monger/Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/3/86   Retire: 5/26/17 

    Years of Service:  30 

 

Barbara Yike   Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/25/95   Retire: 3/31/17 

    Years of Service:  21 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

 

Jane Cooper Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 8/1/16 Resign: 2/3/17 

 

Stanley Davis Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 9/8/15 Resign: 2/17/17 

 

Denise Finn Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 5/4/16 Resign: 1/31/17 

 

Anthony Horvath Transportation/Mechanic 

Began: 7/28/14 Resign: 2/23/17 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Dinorah Kuehn Pinewood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 1/3/11 Resign: 2/17/17 

 

Renzo Olcese Career Center/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/20/16 Resign: 1/13/17 

 

Meghan Swihart Osolo/Academic Trainer 

Began: 5/24/16 Resign: 1/31/17 

 

Tammy Watson Pierre Moran/Food Service  

Began: 11/13/00 Resign: 2/10/17 

 

Brooke Wilcox Transportation/Bus Driver Unassigned 

Began: 8/4/16 Resign: 1/27/17 

 

d. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees:  

 

Fred Blaisdell   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 11/30/16  PE: 2/8/17 

 

Jacqueline Coots  Career Center/Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/28/16  PE: 2/7/17 

 

Rachel Fletcher  Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 12/05/16  PE: 2/13/17 

 

Mykayla Meachum  Central/Custodian 

Began: 12/13/16  PE: 2/6/17 

 

Seth Miller   Memorial/Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/28/16  PE: 2/6/17 

 

Mesha Olson   Bristol/Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/30/16  PE: 2/8/17 

 

 

Brittnee Taylor  Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 11/17/16  PE: 1/26/17  

 

Angela Turpin   Elkhart Academy/Permanent Sub Teacher 

Began: 11/28/16  PE: 2/6/17  

 

e. Revision – We recommend the revision of the resignation date reported on the  January 10, 2017 

Board report for the following employee:  

 

Brian Buckley   Central/H.S. Athletic Director 

Began: 7/29/09   Resign: 3/17/17 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

f. Medical Leave – We recommend an unpaid medical leave for the following classified employee:  

 

Sharon Kirkpatrick  Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Begin: 1/25/17   End: 2/24/17 

 

 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert haworth 

From  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  February 14, 2017 

 

Addendum to Human Resources report 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective January 10, 2017: 

 

Keith Baker  Beck/Assistant Principal 
 


	Agenda
	Contingent Side Agreement
	Aquatics Agreement (Beacon - Aquatics Facility Elkhart Health Fitness)
	ARTICLE 1  SCHEDULE OF DEFINITIONS
	ARTICLE 2  GRANT; TERM OF AGREEMENT
	SECTION 2.1 Grant
	SECTION 2.2 Term of Agreement
	SECTION 2.3 Construction
	SECTION 2.4 Possession and Commencement Date

	ARTICLE 3  PAYMENTS
	SECTION 3.1 Payment Components
	SECTION 3.2 Pre-Commencement Payments
	SECTION 3.3 Mid-Term Capital Amount
	SECTION 3.4 Operational Payments
	SECTION 3.5 Additional Payments
	SECTION 3.6 Delinquent Payments
	SECTION 3.7 Independent Obligations

	ARTICLE 4  USE OF PREMISES
	SECTION 4.1 Generally
	SECTION 4.2 ECS’s Exclusive Rights
	SECTION 4.3 Nonexclusive Uses
	SECTION 4.4 Preservation of Premises
	SECTION 4.5 Rules
	SECTION 4.6 Parking
	ECS acknowledges that the City of Elkhart, Indiana will be constructing a parking area on the Land. This Agreement will not be void or voidable, nor will EHFA and BHS be liable to ECS for any loss or damage therefrom or any reduction in Payments of an...

	SECTION 4.7 Rights Reserved by BHS; Access to Premises
	(a) To:
	(b) Subject to the following provisions, to enter the Premises in order to:
	(c) Subject to the last sentence of this Section 4.7(c), to:
	(d) Subject to the School Programming Schedule, BHS may lease or license the Pools to third parties, whether public or private, (other than public or private K-12, high school, junior high school or elementary schools other than ECS, as provided in Se...
	(e) BHS retains all rights to receive all concessions, rents and vending machine revenue from use of the Premises, except for concession sales, admission fees and vendor fees relating to Exclusive School Uses as provided in Section 4.2.


	ARTICLE 5  TAXES AND UTILITIES
	SECTION 5.1 Taxes
	SECTION 5.2 Interruption and Changes

	ARTICLE 6  INSURANCE
	SECTION 6.1 Kinds and Amounts.
	SECTION 6.2 BHS Insurance.
	SECTION 6.3 Deductibles; Evidence of Insurance.
	SECTION 6.4 Blanket Policies.
	SECTION 6.5 Fire Protection.
	SECTION 6.6 Mutual Waiver of Subrogation Rights.
	SECTION 6.7 Policies.
	SECTION 6.8 Construction by ECS.

	ARTICLE 7  INDEMNITY AND WAIVER
	SECTION 7.1 Indemnification.
	SECTION 7.2 Hazardous Materials.
	SECTION 7.3 Compliance with Environmental Laws.
	SECTION 7.4 Waiver of Certain Claims.

	ARTICLE 8  MAINTENANCE/SERVICES
	SECTION 8.1 Maintenance
	SECTION 8.2 BHS’s Obligations
	SECTION 8.3 BHS’s Services

	ARTICLE 9  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND ORDINANCES
	SECTION 9.1 Compliance with Laws and Ordinances
	SECTION 9.2 Compliance with Environmental Laws
	SECTION 9.3 Survival

	ARTICLE 10  ALTERATIONS, SIGNS, MECHANIC’S LIENS AND OTHER LIENS
	SECTION 10.1 ECS’s Changes and Alterations
	ECS will construct Alterations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and all applicable Legal Requirements (collectively, the “Building Requirements”). ECS, at its cost, will promptly restore any damage to the Premises or other parts of the ...

	SECTION 10.2 ECS’s Signs
	SECTION 10.3 Freedom from Liens

	ARTICLE 11  SURRENDER; HOLDING OVER
	SECTION 11.1 Surrender of Premises
	If the parties do not agree to extend the Term or enter into a new Agreement upon the expiration of the Term, then ECS will on the expiration of the Term of this Agreement (and ECS will upon any re-entry by BHS upon the Premises pursuant to the terms ...

	SECTION 11.2 Holding Over

	ARTICLE 12  DEFAULTS OF ECS
	SECTION 12.1 Events of Default
	SECTION 12.2 BHS’s Remedies
	a BHS may terminate the Agreement and obtain possession of the Premises by delivery of a notice of termination to ECS. Such termination will be immediately effective and BHS, if necessary, is entitled to commence immediately an action in summary proce...
	b BHS may, as an alternative to terminating the Agreement, serve a written demand for possession of the Premises. BHS will be entitled to possession of the Premises and ECS will then have no further right to possession under the Agreement. ECS will re...

	SECTION 12.3 BHS Payment of Expenses
	SECTION 12.4 No Waiver
	SECTION 12.5 Cumulative Remedies
	SECTION 12.6 Waiver by ECS
	SECTION 12.7 Default Rate
	SECTION 12.8 Attorneys’ Fees
	SECTION 12.9 BHS’s Default

	ARTICLE 13  DESTRUCTION AND RESTORATION
	SECTION 13.1 Restoration
	SECTION 13.2 Abatement of Payments
	SECTION 13.3 Termination of Agreement

	ARTICLE 14  CONDEMNATION
	SECTION 14.1 Condemnation of Premises
	SECTION 14.2 Condemnation Award

	ARTICLE 15  ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFERS
	SECTION 15.1 Transfers Prohibited
	ECS may not at any time mortgage, hypothecate, pledge or grant a security interest in ECS’s interest in this Agreement or in the Premises. In addition, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, ECS will not at any time, without the prior written ...

	SECTION 15.2 Permitted Transfer
	SECTION 15.3 Recapture
	SECTION 15.4 Effect of Transfer

	ARTICLE 16  SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE, AND ATTORNMENT
	SECTION 16.1 Certain Definitions
	SECTION 16.2 Subordination by ECS

	ARTICLE 17  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	SECTION 17.1 Notices
	SECTION 17.2 Quiet Enjoyment
	SECTION 17.3 BHS’s Continuing Obligations
	SECTION 17.4 Estoppel Statement
	SECTION 17.5 Severability
	SECTION 17.6 Governing Law
	SECTION 17.7 Successors and Assigns
	SECTION 17.8 Captions
	SECTION 17.9 Relationship of Parties
	SECTION 17.10 Entire Agreement
	SECTION 17.11 Survival
	SECTION 17.12 Force Majeure
	SECTION 17.13 Limited Liability
	SECTION 17.14 Broker
	SECTION 17.15 Time is of the Essence
	SECTION 17.16 Waiver of Jury Trial
	SECTION 17.17 Authority

	EXHIBIT A LAND, IMPROVEMENTS AND PLAN OF PREMISES
	EXHIBIT B RULES

	Pinewood Building Report
	Minutes - Work Session January 24 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting January 24 2017
	Minutes - Work Session January 30 2017
	Appropriation Transfers Memo
	Appropriaton Transfers
	Gift Acceptance - Memorial
	Gift Acceptance - Student Services
	Extra-Curricular Purchase Request
	Fundraisers
	TransPar Amendment & Contract
	Transpar - Amendment
	Transpar

	Administrative Regulation GDBA-10
	Grants
	EEF Grants
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report
	Personnel Report Addendum



